U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
OFFICE OF CAREER, TECHNICAL, AND ADULT EDUCATION
DIVISION OF ACADEMIC AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20202

Fiscal Year 2023 Perkins Innovation and Modernization (PIM) Grant Program for Career-Connected High Schools

(Assistance Listing Number 84.051F)

APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR FY 2023 PIM GRANT AWARDS



http//cte.ed.gov/

APPLICATION CLOSING DATE: October 13, 2023

FORM APPROVED: OMB Number 1830-0583 EXPIRATION DATE: 07/31/2026

I. TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	Table of Contents	1
II.	Background Information	5
	Program Overview	5
	Available Funding	5
	Eligibility	
	Notice Inviting Applications	
	Addressing Your Questions	
	Intent to Apply	
	Applicant Guide	
	Application Narrative	
III.	Application Submission Information	8
	Application Submission Deadline	
	Common Instructions	
	Grants.gov Submission Procedures and Tips for Applicants	8
IV.	Cubmission Ducklams What should you do?	10
	Submission Problems – What should you do?	
V.	Helpful Hints When Working with Grants.gov	
VI.	Slow Internet Connections	
	Grants.gov System Maintenance	11
VII	Application Component Checklist	12
	Part 1: Preliminary Forms	
1	Required Forms	
	•	
I	Part 2: Budget Information	
	ED Budget Information Non-Construction Programs (ED Form 524)	15
Į	Part 3: ED Abstract Form	17
	Part 4: Project Narrative Attachment Form	
•	Priorities.	
	Absolute Priorities	
	Competitive Preference Priorities.	
	Application Requirements	22
	Program Requirements	24
	Selection Criteria for Project Narrative	
	Suggested Point Ranges for Rating Applicant Responses to the Selection Criteria	
	Selection Criteria	
	Review and Selection Process	
	Risk Assessment and Special Conditions	
	Integrity and Performance System	29
I	Part 5: Budget Narrative	31
	Suggested Instructions for the Budget Narrative	32
	2 (CO1 A) 1 (F	27
1	Part 6: Other Attachment Form	
	Instructions for Appendix	37
I	Part 7: Assurances and Certifications	38
I	Part 8: Intergovernmental Review (Executive Order 12372)	39
	Optional Application Package Attachments	
	Optional Checklist for Documenting Rural Eligibility and Locale Codes	

VII	I. Reporting and Accountability	41
	Performance Measures	4
	Project-Specific Performance Measures.	42
IX.	Notice Inviting Applications	43
X.	Authorizing Legislation	81

PAPERWORK BURDEN STATEMENT

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless such collection displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 1830-0583. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 40 hours per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. The obligation to respond to this collection is voluntary. If you have any comments concerning the accuracy of the time estimate, suggestions for improving this individual collection, or if you have comments or concerns regarding the status of your individual form, application or survey, please contact the PIM grant program team in the Office of Career, Technical and Adult Education (OCTAE) at PIMGrants@ed.gov directly.



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE OF CAREER, TECHNICAL, AND ADULT EDUCATION

Dear Applicant:

On behalf of the U.S. Department of Education, thank you for your interest in the Perkins Innovation and Modernization (PIM) Grant Program for Career-Connected High Schools (CCHS), which is authorized by section 114(e) of the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, as amended by the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Perkins V). Through this competition, the Department seeks to award just over \$24 million in grant funds in FY 2023 for projects that will build capacity among secondary education, postsecondary education, and workforce development systems to expand access to career-connected high school programs for more students. As described in the NIA, career-connected high schools are those that offer systematic postsecondary counseling and career advising, dual or concurrent enrollment, work-based learning, and programs that offer opportunities to earn an industry-recognized credential. Applications for FY 2023 PIM grant funds must be submitted through Grants.gov (http://www.grants.gov) no later than October 13, 2023.

In this document, we provide detailed instructions for the submission of applications that fully meet the requirements of the Notice Inviting Applications (NIA) for the PIM grant program that was published in the Federal Register on Monday, August 14, 2023. As noted in the NIA, we strongly encourage each potential applicant to notify us of its intent to submit an application by sending a short email message with the applicant organization's name and address to PIMGrants@ed.gov with "Intent to Apply" in the email subject line. Applicants who do not provide this email notification may still apply for funding.

Finally, if you have other questions regarding the competition process, please send an email to PIMgrants@ed.gov. Again, thank you for your interest in this competition and your commitment to improving the quality of student learning in schools across this country.

Sincerely,

Sharon Lee Miller

Shaw Lee Willer

Director, Division of Academic and Technical Education Office of Career, Technical, and Adult Education

U. S. Department of Education

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Program Overview

The purpose of the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program is to identify, support, and evaluate evidence-based and innovative strategies and activities to improve and modernize Career and Technical Education (CTE) and align workforce skills with labor market needs in CTE programs funded under the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, as amended by the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Perkins V or the Act). With this FY 2023 competition, the Department seeks to support applicants that will build capacity among secondary education, postsecondary education, and workforce development systems to expand access to career-connected high school programs for more students.

Available Funding

- Estimated Available Funds: \$24,250,000.
- Estimated Range of Awards: \$1,100,000 \$1,475,000 for each 12-month project period (i.e., a total of approximately \$3,425,000 \$4,425,000 over the full potential 36-month project period).
- Estimated Average Size of Awards: \$1,300,000 for each 12-month project period.
- Estimated Number of Awards: 10-20.

Contingent upon the availability of funds and the quality of applications, we may make additional awards in subsequent years from the list of unfunded applications from this competition.

Note: The Department is not bound by any estimates and does not set a maximum award in this notice.

Project Period: Up to 36 months, with potential for renewal of up to an additional 24 months.

Extensions: Under section 114(e)(6)(b) of Perkins V, the Secretary may extend a grant awarded under this section for up to 2 additional years if the grantee demonstrates to the Secretary that the project is achieving the grantee's program objectives and has improved education outcomes for CTE students, including special populations.

<u>Note</u>: Applicants must submit annual budgets for a 60-month project period. During the third year of the project period for grants awarded under this competition, if the Department exercises the option to offer an opportunity for extensions, the Department will provide grantees with information on the extension process. In making decisions on whether to award a 2-year extension award, we intend to review performance data submitted in regularly required reporting, as well as potentially request other information about the grantee's progress in implementing its project.

Eligibility

The following entities are eligible to apply under this competition. Definitions for these entities are included in the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program NIA:

- (a) An Eligible Entity.
- (b) An Eligible Institution.
- (c) An Eligible Recipient.

<u>Note</u>: An Eligible Entity must comply with the regulations in 34 CFR 75.127 through 75.129, which address group applications.

Subgrantees: Under 34 CFR 75.708(b) and (c), a grantee under this competition may award subgrants to directly carry out project activities described in its application to the following types of entities: IHEs, LEAs, non-profit organizations, qualified intermediaries, or SEAs. The grantee may only award subgrants to entities it has identified in an approved application.

Rural Applicants: Section 114(e)(5) of Perkins V directs the Department to award no less than 25 percent of PIM grant funds to projects proposing to fund CTE activities that serve students in rural communities, contingent on receipt of a sufficient number of applications of sufficient quality. To confirm that a proposed project will serve students from rural communities, Absolute Priority 3 requires an applicant to identify, by name, National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) local educational agency (LEA), identification number, and NCES locale code, the rural LEA(s) that it proposes to serve in its grant application. Applicants from rural communities, including Tribal applicants, that wish to be considered for these focused funds, must meet Absolute Priorities 1, 2, and 3.

To qualify as a rural applicant under section 114(e)(5)(A), an applicant must meet at least one of the following requirements:

- (a) The applicant is--
- (1) An LEA with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary;
- (2) An IHE primarily serving one or more areas served by an LEA with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary;
- (3) A consortium of such LEAs or such IHEs described in clause (1) or (2), above;
- (4) An educational service agency or a nonprofit organization in partnership with such an LEA or such an IHE, in clause (1) or (2), above; or
- (5) An applicant described in clause (1) or (2) in partnership with an SEA.

<u>Note</u>: For the purposes of meeting the statutory rural set aside, an applicant must meet the requirements as listed above and provide the necessary locale codes in its grant application. Applicants are encouraged to retrieve locale codes from the National Center for Education Statistics School District search tool (https://nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/), where districts can be looked up individually to retrieve locale codes.

Notice Inviting Applications

The full text of the Notice Inviting Applications (NIA) for the FY 2023 Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program competition can be found on the Federal Register Web site at: https://www.federalregister.gov and on page 43.

Addressing Your Questions

The Department provides multiple avenues for interested applicants to ask questions to clarify their understanding of the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program competition and process. In addition to accessing any pre-application webinar that may be posted on https://cte.ed.gov/ of this application package, interested applicants may send their questions to PIMGrants@ed.gov. Applicants should keep in mind that the Department cannot provide guidance on specific applications. Current information on this program, including any potential Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) that we may publish, can be found at https://cte.ed.gov/.

Intent to Apply

We will be able to develop a more efficient process for reviewing grant applications if we can anticipate the number of applicants that intend to apply for funding under this competition. Therefore, we strongly encourage each potential applicant to notify us of the applicant's intent to submit an application for funding by sending a short email message with the applicant organization's name and address to PIMGrants@ed.gov with "Intent to Apply" in the email subject line. Applicants that do not provide this email notification may still apply for funding.

Applicant Guide

Please note that the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program Application Package is for applicants to download and use as a guide only. The electronic application on <u>Grants.gov</u> consists of multiple mandatory forms that must be completed as well as narrative attachment forms that should be used to upload any file attachments. Follow the guidance provided on Grants.gov as well as the Submission Tips document located in this application instruction document for specific information on file sizes, file naming requirements, etc.

Application Narrative

The PIN	A grant application will use the following Grants.gov Narrative Forms:
	ED Abstract Narrative Form
	The <u>ED Abstract Narrative Form</u> is where you will attach your project abstract. Specific instructions on what to include in the abstract are on page 17 of this application package.
	Project Narrative Form
	The <u>Project Narrative Form</u> is where you will attach your responses to the Program Requirements, Application Requirements (d) through (f), and the selection criteria. Applicants should include a Table of Contents. Specific instructions are included starting on page 18 of this application package.
	Budget Narrative Form
	The <u>Budget Narrative Form</u> is where you will attach a line-item budget (ED 524) and budget narratives for the proposed project, including your responses to application requirements (b) and (c). The budget narratives should project all costs of the proposed project. The budget should reflect an annual budget for all 5 years of the proposed project. Specific instructions are included on pages 31-36.
	If you have multiple documents to be attached to one of the above narrative sections, it is recommended a merge them into one .PDF file and upload them to the appropriate narrative.

☐ Other Attachments Form (upload appendices here)

Applicants should attach all appendices to the Other Attachments Form. For each appendix, applicants are asked to save files as a .PDF, label each file with the Appendix name and upload the file to the Other Attachments Form. The Other Attachments Form can support up to ten attachments.

Ensure that you only attach the U.S. Department of Education approved file types detailed in the NIA (read-only, non-modifiable .pdf files). Also, do not upload any password-protected files to your application.

Please note that Grants.gov cannot process an application that includes two or more files that have the same name within a grant submission.

When attaching files, applicants should limit the size of their file names. Lengthy file names could result in difficulties with opening and processing your application. We recommend your file names be less than 50 characters.

III. APPLICATION SUBMISSION INFORMATION

Application Submission Deadline

The deadline for submission of applications for the FY 2023 Career-Connect High School competition as through Grants.gov is 11:59:59 PM EST on October 13, 2023.

Common Instructions

The Department's Common Instructions for Applicants to Department of Education Discretionary Grant Programs, published in the Federal Register on December 7, 2022 (87 FR 75045), and available at https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/07/2022-26554/common-instructions-for-applicants-to-department-of-education-discretionary-grant-programs.

Grants.gov Submission Procedures and Tips for Applicants

IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ FIRST (updated February 2022)

To facilitate your use of Grants.gov, this document includes important submission procedures you need to be aware of to ensure your application is received in a timely manner and accepted by the Department of Education.

Browser Support

The latest versions of Microsoft Internet Explorer (IE), Mozilla Firefox, Google Chrome, and Apple Safari are supported for use with Grants.gov. However, these web browsers undergo frequent changes and updates, so we recommend you have the latest version when using Grants.gov. Legacy versions of these web browsers may be functional, but you may experience issues. Grants.gov no longer provides support for Microsoft Internet Explorer 9 or below.

For additional information or updates, please see the Grants.gov Browser information in the Applicant FAQs: http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html#browser

ATTENTION - Workspace, Adobe Forms and PDF Files

Grants.gov applicants can apply online using Workspace. Workspace is a shared, online environment where members of a grant team may simultaneously access and edit different web forms within an application. For each funding opportunity announcement (FOA), you can create individual instances of a workspace.

Below is an overview of applying on Grants.gov. For access to complete instructions on how to apply for opportunities, refer to: https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/workspace-overview.html

- 1) Create a Workspace: Creating a workspace allows you to complete it online and route it through your organization for review before submitting.
- 2) Complete a Workspace: Add participants to the workspace to work on the application together, complete all the required forms online or by downloading PDF versions, and check for errors before submission. The Workspace progress bar will display the state of your application process as you apply. As you apply using Workspace, you may click the blue question mark icon near the upper-right corner of each page to access context-sensitive help.

a. Adobe Reader: If you decide not to apply by filling out web forms you can download individual PDF forms in Workspace. The individual PDF forms can be downloaded and saved to your local device storage, network drive(s), or external drives, then accessed through Adobe Reader.

NOTE: Visit the Adobe Software Compatibility page on Grants.gov to download the appropriate version of the software at: https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/adobe-software-compatibility.html

- b. Mandatory Fields in Forms: In the forms, you will note fields marked with an asterisk and a different background color. These fields are mandatory fields that must be completed to successfully submit your application.
- c. Complete SF-424 Fields First: The forms are designed to fill in common required fields across other forms, such as the applicant's name, address, and Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) Number. Once it is completed, the information will transfer to the other forms.
- 3) Submit a Workspace: An application may be submitted through workspace by clicking the Sign and Submit button on the Manage Workspace page, under the Forms tab. <u>Grants.gov</u> recommends submitting your application package at least 24-48 hours prior to the close date to provide you with time to correct any potential technical issues that may disrupt the application submission.
- 4) Track a Workspace Submission: After successfully submitting a workspace application, a <u>Grants.gov</u> Tracking Number (GRANTXXXXXXXX) is automatically assigned to the application. The number will be listed on the Confirmation page that is generated after submission. Using the tracking number, access the Track My Application page under the Applicants tab or the Details tab in the submitted workspace.

For additional training resources, including video tutorials, refer to <a href="https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applica

Helpful Reminders

1) REGISTER EARLY – Grants.gov registration involves many steps including registration on SAM (www.sam.gov), which usually takes approximately 7 to 10 business days, but can take longer depending on the completeness and accuracy of the data entered into the SAM database by an applicant. You may begin working on your application while completing the registration process, but you cannot submit an application until all of the Registration steps are complete. Please note that once your SAM registration is active, it will take 24-48 hours for the information to be available in Grants.gov, and before you can submit an application through Grants.gov. For detailed information on the Registration Steps, please go to: http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/register.html. Please note that your organization will need to update its SAM registration annually.

To register in SAM.gov, click on the "Get Started" link under the "Register Your Entity..." heading in SAM.gov. Grantees, and other entities wanting to do business with the U.S. Department of Education (e.g., entities applying for a grant), that are not already registered in SAM.gov must complete the "Register Entity" registration option and NOT the "Get a Unique Entity ID" option, which is not a full registration, is only available to entities for reporting purposes. Failing to complete the "Register Entity" option may result in loss of funding, loss of applicant eligibility, and/or delays in receiving a grant award. Information about SAM is available at www.SAM.gov. To further assist you with registering in SAM or updating your existing SAM registration, see the Quick Start Guide for Grant Registrations and the Entity Registration Video at https://sam.gov/content/entity-registration.

2) SUBMIT EARLY – We strongly recommend that you do not wait until the last day to submit your application. Grants.gov will put a date/time stamp on your application and then process it after it is fully uploaded. The time it takes to upload an application will vary depending on a number of factors including the size of the application and the speed of your Internet connection, and the time it takes Grants.gov to process the application will vary as well. If Grants.gov rejects your application (see step three below), you will need to resubmit successfully to Grants.gov before 11:59:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the deadline date.

You must provide the UEI on your application that was used when you registered as an Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) on Grants.gov. This UEI is assigned to your organization in SAM at the time your organization registers in SAM. If you do not enter the UEI assigned by SAM on your application, Grants.gov will reject your application.

3) VERIFY SUBMISSION IS OK – You will want to verify that Grants.gov received your application submission on time and that it was validated successfully. To see the date/time your application was received, login to Grants.gov and click on the Track My Application link. For a successful submission, the date/time received should be earlier than 11:59:59 p.m. Eastern Time, on the deadline date, AND the application status should be: Validated, Received by Agency, or Agency Tracking Number Assigned. Once the Department of Education receives your application from Grants.gov, an Agency Tracking Number (PR/award number) will be assigned to your application and will be available for viewing on Grants.gov's Track My Application link.

If the date/time received is later than 11:59:59 p.m. Eastern Time, on the deadline date, your application is late. If your application has a status of "Received" it is still awaiting validation by Grants.gov. Once validation is complete, the status will either change to "Validated" or "Rejected with Errors." If the status is "Rejected with Errors," your application has not been received successfully. Some of the reasons Grants.gov may reject an application can be found on the Grants.gov site: http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/encountering-error-messages.html. For more detailed information on troubleshooting Adobe errors, you can review the Adobe Reader Software Tip Sheet at: http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/adobe-software-compatibility.html. If you discover your application is late or has been rejected, please see the instructions below. Note: You will receive a series of confirmations both online and via e-mail about the status of your application. Please do not rely solely on e-mail to confirm whether your application has been received timely and validated successfully.

IV. Submission Problems - What should you do?

If you have problems submitting to Grants.gov before the closing date, please contact Grants.gov Customer Support at 1-800-518-4726 or email at: mailto:support@grants.gov or access the Grants.gov Self-Service Knowledge Base web portal at: https://grants-portal.psc.gov/Welcome.aspx?pt=Grants

We discourage paper applications, but if electronic submission is not possible (e.g., you do not have access to the internet), (1) you must provide a prior written notification that you intend to submit a paper application and (2) your paper application must be postmarked by the application deadline date. If you submit your prior written notification by email, it must be received by the Department no later than 14 calendar days before the application deadline date. If you mail your notification to the Department, it must be postmarked no later than 14 calendar days before the application deadline date (See the 2022 Common Instructions for detailed instructions regarding this procedure).

V. Helpful Hints When Working with Grants.gov

Please go to http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/support.html for help with Grants.gov. For additional tips related to submitting grant applications, please refer to the Grants.gov Applicant FAQs found at this Grants.gov link: http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html as well as additional information on Workspace at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html #workspace.

VI. Slow Internet Connections

When using a slow internet connection, such as a dial-up connection, to upload and submit your application, it can take significantly longer than when you are connected to the Internet with a high-speed connection, e.g., cable modem/DSL/T1. While times will vary depending upon the size of your application, it can take a few minutes to a few hours to complete your grant submission using a dial up connection. Failure to fully upload an application by the deadline date and time will result in your application being marked late in the G5 system. If you do not have access to a high-speed internet connection, you may want to consider following the instructions in the Federal Register notice to obtain an exception to the electronic submission requirement no later than 14 calendar days before the application deadline date. (See the Federal Register notice for detailed instructions and the 2022 Common Instructions.)

Attaching Files – Additional Tips

Please note the following tips related to attaching files to your application:

- When you submit your application electronically, you must upload any narrative sections and all other attachments to your application as files in either Portable Document Format (PDF) or Microsoft Word. Although applicants have the option of uploading any narrative sections and all other attachments to their application in either PDF or Microsoft Word, we recommend applicants submit all documents as read-only flattened PDFs, meaning any fillable PDF files must be saved and submitted as non-fillable PDF files and not as interactive or fillable PDF files, to better ensure applications are processed in a more timely, accurate, and efficient manner.
- Grants.gov cannot process an application that includes two or more files that have the same name within a grant submission. Therefore, each file uploaded to your application package should have a unique file name.
- When attaching files, applicants should follow the guidelines established by Grants.gov on the size and content of file names. Uploaded file names must be fewer than 50 characters, and, in general, applicants should not use any special characters. However, Grants.gov does allow for the following UTF-8 characters when naming your attachments: A-Z, a-z, 0-9, underscore, hyphen, space, period, parenthesis, curly braces, square brackets, ampersand, tilde, exclamation point, comma, semi colon, apostrophe, at sign, number sign, dollar sign, percent sign, plus sign, and equal sign. Applications submitted that do not comply with the Grants.gov guidelines will be rejected at Grants.gov and not forwarded to the Department.
- Applicants should limit the size of their file attachments. Documents submitted that contain graphics and/or scanned material often greatly increase the size of the file attachments and can result in difficulties opening the files. For reference, the average discretionary grant application package with all attachments is less than 5 MB. Therefore, you may want to check the total size of your package before submission.

Grants.gov System Maintenance

Please keep in mind that the Grants.gov system will not be available for use during the times listed below.

Date	Details
September 16-18, 2023	Scheduled Maintenance Outage: Production System will go Offline Saturday September 16, 2023, at 12:01 AM ET. Production System will go Online Monday September 18, 2023, at 6:00 AM ET.

VII. APPLICATION COMPONENT CHECKLIST

Applicants should review this optional checklist once they believe they have completed their applications. The checklist contains all mandatory parts of the application. The Application Checklist is optional; however, applicants are strongly encouraged to fill in the checklist or something similar, to ensure that all requirements have been addressed and to ensure that program staff and peer reviewers can find the information in your application that addresses each applicable element from the NIA.

Reminder that all forms are available on Grants.gov. You may also find forms at: <u>Grant Application and Other Forms (ed.gov)</u>.

Part 1:	Preliminary Documents
	Application for Federal Assistance (SF 424)
	Department of Education Supplemental Information for SF 424
	ED Grant Application Form for Project Objectives and Performance Measures Information
Part 2:	Budget Information
	Department of Education Budget Summary Form (ED 524)
Part 3:	ED Abstract Form
	ED Abstract Narrative
Part 4:	Project Narrative Attachment Form
	Project Narrative
Part 5:	Budget Narrative Attachment Form
	Budget Narrative
Part 6:	Other Attachments Form (Recommended Labels for Appendices)
	Appendix A: Signed consortium agreement, if applicable
	Appendix B: Individual Resumes for Project Director and Key Personnel
	Appendix C: Letters of Commitment from project partners, if applicable
	Appendix D: Documentation of rural eligibility and list of rural locale codes, if applicable
	Applicants are strongly encouraged to complete the rural eligibility checklist on page 40. Applicants applying as rural are encouraged to retrieve locale codes from the National Center for Education Statistics School District search tool (https://nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/), where districts can be looked up individually to retrieve locale codes.
	Appendix E: Current Indirect Cost Rate Agreement
	Appendix F: List of proprietary information found in the application, if applicable
	Appendix G: Demonstration of match or a request for a waiver to reduce the match
	Appendix H: For Application Requirement (a)(7), applicants must submit a signed letter of assurance that the applicant will:
	(i) provide information to the Secretary, as requested, for evaluations that the Secretary may carry out; and

	laws, including section 444 of the General Education Provisions Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g, commonly known as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974).
	Appendix I: Assurances
Part 7:	Assurances and Certifications
	General Education Provisions Act (GEPA) Requirements – Section 427 (ED GEPA 427)
	Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (Standard Form LLL) [optional form]
	Assurances – Non-Construction Programs (SF 424B)
Part 8:	Intergovernmental Review (Executive Order 12372)
	State Single Point of Contact (SPOC) List

PART 1: PRELIMINARY FORMS

Required Forms

Electronic copies and instructions for the required forms can be downloaded at the following address: https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/appforms.html and can be found in the Grants.gov submission package.

Application for Federal Assistance (Form SF 424)

https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/sf-424-core-form.pdf

Applicants may consider attaching their documentation for eligibility requirements to the SF 424 Form. The entity name as listed on the SF-424 (Box 8a) must be the legal name of an entity eligible for a PIM grant.

ED Supplemental Information for SF 424

 $\underline{https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/sf424edsuppl.pdf}$

These forms require basic identifying information about the applicant and the application. Please provide all requested applicant information (including name, address, e-mail address and Unique Entity ID (UEI)). When applying electronically via Grants.gov, you will need to ensure that the UEI enter on your application is the same as the UEI your organization used when it registered with the System for Award Management.

Applicants are advised to complete the Application for Federal Assistance (Form SF 424) first. Grants.gov will automatically insert the correct CFDA and program name automatically wherever needed on other forms. Please do not attach any narratives, supporting files, or application components to the Standard Form (SF 424). Although this form accepts attachments, the Department of Education will only review materials/files attached in accordance with the instructions provided within this application.

Grant Application Form for Project Objectives and Performance Measures

Please download the fillable Grant Application Form for Project Objectives and Performance Measures Information at: https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/1897-0017.pdf

<u>Note</u>: Instructions for all of the standard forms (SF-424, ED-524, and SF-424 Supplemental, etc.), will follow the forms included elsewhere in the application package.

PART 2: BUDGET INFORMATION

ED Budget Information Non-Construction Programs (ED Form 524)

This part of your application contains information about the Federal funding you are requesting.

Remember that you must provide all requested budget information for each year of the project and the total column in order to be considered for Federal funding. Specific instructions for completing the budget forms are provided within this application package.

Instructions for completing ED Form 524 Section A: (Refer to the following link for additional information: https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/ed524.pdf):

Name of Institution/Organization: Enter the name of the applicant in the space provided.

<u>Personnel (line 1):</u> Enter project personnel salaries and wages only. Include fees and expenses for consultants on line 6.

<u>Fringe Benefits (line 2):</u> The institution's normal fringe benefits contribution may be charged to the program. Leave this line blank if fringe benefits applicable to direct salaries and wages are treated as part of the indirect cost.

<u>Travel (line 3):</u> Indicate the travel costs of employees and participants only. Provide a breakdown of the costs associated with each trip and justification for the costs. In addition, applicants should include costs for four project staff persons (project director, evaluator, and two partners) to attend a three-day meeting in Washington, DC in Year 1 and an annual 2-day project directors meeting in Washington, DC in Years 2-5. Include travel of persons such as consultants on line 6.

Equipment (line 4): Indicate the cost of tangible, non-expendable personal property that has a usefulness greater than one year and acquisition costs that are the lesser of the capitalization level established by the applicant entity for financial statement purposes or \$5,000 per article. Lower limits may be established to maintain consistency with the applicant's policy. Indicate the amount of equipment that is being purchased, the cost per unit, and the justification of purchases that links to the project narrative.

<u>Supplies (line 5):</u> Show all tangible, expendable personal property. Direct supplies and materials differ from equipment in that they are consumable, expendable, and of a relatively low unit cost. Supplies purchased with grant funds should directly benefit the grant project and be necessary for achieving the goals of the project.

<u>Contractual (line 6):</u> The contractual category should include all costs specifically incurred with actions that the applicant takes in conjunction with an established internal procurement system. Include consultant fees, expenses, and travel costs in this category if the consultant's services are obtained through a written binding agreement or contract. Identify who is being contracted with, the amount of the contract (this should include a breakdown of the major service components of the contract and the costs of each portion) and an explanation of what the services are being provided by the contractor.

<u>Construction (line 7)</u>: Not applicable

Other (line 8): Indicate all direct costs not covered on lines 1-6. For example, include costs such as space rental, required fees, honoraria, and travel (where a contract is not in place for services), training, and communication and printing costs. Do not include costs that are included in the indirect cost rate.

If considering costs related to meals, please first refer to the Department's guidance: https://www2.ed.gov/policy/fund/guid/uniform-guidance/faqs-grantee-conferences.doc.

Total Direct Costs (line 9): The sum of lines 1-8.

<u>Indirect Costs (line 10)</u>: Indicate the applicant's approved indirect cost rate, per sections 75.560 – 75.564 of EDGAR. If an applicant does not have an approved indirect cost rate agreement with a cognizant Federal agency, the applicant may, if permitted by the Department use a temporary indirect cost rate if it wishes to charge indirect costs to the grant. For more information, go to the Department's website at: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocfo/fipao/icgindex.html. In addition, a grantee, if it is eligible, may also use De Minimis rate as provided for under 2 CFR 200.414(f).

<u>Training Stipends (line 11)</u>: Indicate the amount of stipend, the number of grant participants receiving the stipends and the justification for the stipend. Please make sure that training stipends are placed under this line item and not under "Personnel" or "Other."

<u>Total Cost (line 12):</u> This should equal to sum of lines 9-11 (total direct costs + indirect + stipends). The sum for column one, labeled Project Year 1 (a), should also be equal to item 15a on the application cover sheet (SF Form 424).

PART 3: ED ABSTRACT FORM

Eligible applicants must submit an abstract. The abstract should be attached as a single document to the ED Abstract Form in accordance with the instructions found on <u>Grants.gov</u>. The abstract should be no more than 1-2 paragraphs, [limited to 2000 characters], and should include the following items:

- The primary goal of the project;
- A succinct description of key project objectives and activities;
- A brief description of the key uses of grant funds;
- The number of students to be served;
- Location of the proposed project;
- A list of all participating partners in the project, if applicable; and,
- Project Director and Key Personnel

Ensure that you only attach the Education approved file types detailed in the Federal Register application notice. Also, do not upload any password-protected files to your application. Please note that Grants.gov cannot process an application that includes two or more files that have the same name within a grant submission.

When attaching files, applicants should limit the size of their file names. Lengthy file names could result in difficulties with opening and processing your application. We recommend your file names be less than 50 characters.

PART 4: PROJECT NARRATIVE ATTACHMENT FORM

This section should be attached as a single document to the Project Narrative Attachment Form in accordance with the instructions found on <u>Grants.gov</u> and should be organized in the following manner and include the following parts in order to expedite the review process.

Ensure that you only attach the Education approved file types detailed in the common instructions. Also, do not upload any password-protected files to your application.

When attaching files, applicants should limit the size of their file names. Lengthy file names could result in difficulties with opening and processing your application. We recommend your file names be less than 50 characters

□ Table of Contents

The Table of Contents shows where and how the important sections of your proposal are organized and should not exceed one double spaced page.

□ Application Narrative

The application narrative responds to the selection criteria, the priorities, and requirements, as specified in the NIA. The Project Narrative should follow the order of the Selection Criteria. It should contain clear headings to help the Department staff and peer reviewers match the narrative with the selection criteria because the application will be evaluated and scored against these criteria. Also, when addressing the criteria, applicants are encouraged to make explicit connections to the absolute priority, competitive preference priorities and invitational priority, if applicable, and requirements.

A strong evaluation plan should be included in the application narrative and should be used, as appropriate, to shape the development of the project from the beginning of the grant period. The plan should include benchmarks to monitor progress toward specific project objectives and also outcome measures to assess the impact on teaching and learning or other important outcomes for project participants. More specifically, the plan should identify the individual and/or organization that have agreed to serve as evaluator for the project and describe the qualifications of that evaluator. The plan should describe the evaluation design, indicating: (1) what types of data will be collected; (2) when various types of data will be collected; (3) what methods will be used; (4) what instruments will be developed and when; (5) how the data will be analyzed; (6) when reports of results and outcomes will be available; and (7) how the applicant will use the information collected through the evaluation to monitor progress of the funded project and to provide accountability information both about success at the initial site and effective strategies for replication in other settings. Applicants are encouraged to devote an appropriate level of resources to project evaluation.

- We encourage applicants to limit this section of the application to the equivalent of no more than 35 pages and adhere to the following guidelines:
- A "page" is 8.5" x 11", on one side only, with 1" margins at the top, bottom, and both sides.
- Double space (no more than three lines per vertical inch) all text in the application narrative, including titles, headings, footnotes, quotations, references, and captions, as well as all text in charts, tables, figures, and graphs.
- Use a font that is either 12 point or larger or no smaller than 10 pitch (characters per inch).
- Use one of the following fonts: Times New Roman, Courier, Courier New, or Arial. The recommended page limit does not apply to the cover sheet; the budget section, including the narrative budget justification; the assurances and certifications; or the project abstract, the resumes, the bibliography, or the letters of support. However, the recommended page limit does apply to the Project Narrative.

Priorities

This notice contains three absolute priorities and two competitive preference priorities. Absolute Priorities 1 and 3 and Competitive Preference Priorities 1(a) and 2 are from the notice of final priorities, requirements, definitions, and selection criteria for the PIM grant program published in the Federal Register on August 14, 2023 (88 FR 55019) (NFP). Absolute Priority 2 and Competitive Preference Priority 1(b) are from the Supplemental Priorities.

While the Priorities information is provided below for applicants' convenience, applicants should be sure to review the full NIA for this competition in the Federal Register. The priorities are explained in detail in the NIA.

Absolute Priorities

For FY 2024 and any subsequent year in which we make awards from the list of unfunded applications from this competition, these priorities are absolute priorities. Under 34 CFR 75.105(c)(3) we consider only applications that meet Absolute Priority 1 and Absolute Priority 2; or Absolute Priority 1, Absolute Priority 2, and Absolute Priority 3.

Absolute Priority 3 constitutes its own funding category under Absolute Priorities 1 and 2. Under section 114(e)(5) of Perkins V, the Department must use at least 25 percent of PIM program grant funds per fiscal year to make awards to applicants serving rural communities, contingent on receipt of a sufficient number of applications of sufficient quality. For purposes of this competition, we will consider an applicant, including Tribal applicants, as rural if the applicant meets the qualifications for rural applicants established in section 114(e)(5)(A) of Perkins V, and the applicant addresses Absolute Priority 3. Consequently, there will be separate funding slates for each of the following categories of applications:

- •Absolute Priorities 1 and 2;
- •Absolute Priorities 1 and 2 and 3.

Note: As a result of the statutory requirement that the Department award no less than 25 percent of PIM grant funds to projects proposing to fund CTE activities that serve students in rural communities, the Department may fund applicants out of the overall rank order, provided applications of sufficient quality are submitted, but the Department is not bound to do so.

These priorities are:

Absolute Priority 1--Career-Connected High Schools.

To meet this priority, an applicant must submit a detailed 5-year implementation plan to increase the alignment and integration of high school and the first 2 years of postsecondary education in one or more high schools that describes the extent to which the applicant is currently implementing career-connected learning, with supporting data if available; and describes how the applicant will substantially increase the proportion of students who graduate from high school with the following four keys for career connected learning:

- (a) Education and career goals documented in a personalized postsecondary education and career plan that was updated at least once in each year of high school through a system of career guidance and academic counseling (as defined by this notice) and postsecondary education navigation supports that offers college and career coaching from trained advisors that is culturally responsive and informed by accurate and current labor market information;
- (b) Postsecondary credits earned from dual or concurrent enrollment programs that are part of a program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program;

- (c) Work experience gained through participation in one or more work-based learning opportunities for which they received wages, academic credit, or both; and
 - (d) An in-demand and high-value industry-recognized credential.

Absolute Priority 2--Promoting Equity in Student Access to Educational Resources and Opportunities.

Under this priority, an applicant must demonstrate that the applicant proposes a project designed to promote educational equity and adequacy in resources and opportunity for underserved students in high school that examines the sources of inequity and inadequacy and implements responses, and that includes rigorous, engaging, and well-rounded (e.g., that includes music and the arts) approaches to learning that are inclusive with regard to race, ethnicity, culture, language, and disability status and prepare students for college, career, and civic life, including the following:

- (a) Advanced courses and programs, including dual enrollment and early college programs.
- (b) Project-based and experiential learning, including service and work-based learning.
- (c) High-quality CTE courses, pathways, and industry-recognized credentials that are integrated into the curriculum.

Absolute Priority 3--Rural Communities.

To meet this priority, an applicant must demonstrate that the proposed project will serve students residing in rural communities and identify by name, National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) LEA identification number, and NCES locale code, the rural LEA(s) that it proposes to serve in its grant application. Applicants may retrieve locale codes from the NCES School District search tool (nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/).

Competitive Preference Priorities.

Competitive preference priorities are optional. To earn competitive preference priority points, an applicant must identify in the project abstract and project narrative section of its application that it wishes the Department to consider the competitive preference priority. The Department will not review or award points for the competitive preference priority for an application that fails to clearly identify that it wishes the Department to consider the competitive preference priority. Non-Federal peer reviewers will be asked to evaluate and score each response against the competitive preference priority.

These priorities are competitive preference priorities. Under 34 CFR 75.105(c)(2)(i), we award an additional 5 points to an application that meets Competitive Preference Priority 1(a), and we award an additional 2 points to an application that meets Competitive Preference Priority 1(b), as applicable. Only applicants that meet Competitive Preference Priority 1(a) are eligible for consideration under Competitive Preference Priority 1(b), and an applicant must address both parts of the priority to receive consideration for the full 7 points under Competitive Preference Priority 1. We award up to an additional 8 points to an application, depending on how well the application meets Competitive Preference Priority 2.

The total maximum points we may award an application that chooses to address all of the Competitive Preference Priorities is 115 for applicants applying under only Absolute Priorities 1 and 2. For applicants serving rural communities under Absolute Priority 3, who are eligible to receive up to an additional 10 points under the Selection Criteria, the total maximum points we may award an application that chooses to address all of the Competitive Preference Priorities is 125.

Competitive Preference Priority 1—Partnership Applications (up to 7 points total).

Competitive Preference Priority 1(a)—Partnership Requirements (5 points).

To meet this priority, an application—

- (1) Must be submitted by an applicant that includes one or more partners in each of the following categories:
- (A) A LEA (including a public charter school LEA), an area CTE school, an educational service agency serving secondary school students, an Indian Tribe, Tribal organization, or Tribal educational agency, eligible to receive assistance under section 131 of Perkins V;
- (B) A community or technical college or other IHE eligible to receive assistance under section 132 of Perkins V; and
- (C) Two or more business or industry representative partners, which may include representatives of local or regional businesses or industries;
- (2) May include any other relevant community stakeholders, such as local workforce development boards, labor-management partnership programs, youth-serving organizations, nonprofit organizations, qualified intermediaries, local teachers' unions or school staff unions or other representatives of teachers and faculty, and afterschool and summer learning programs; and
- (3) Must include a partnership agreement or proposed MOU among all members of the application, identified at the time of the application, that describes the role of each partner in carrying out the proposed project and the process for a formal MOU to be established.

Competitive Preference Priority 1(b)--Promoting Equity in Student Access to Educational Resources and Opportunities (2 points).

Under this priority, an applicant must demonstrate that the project's partnership described in Competitive Preference Priority 1(a) will be implemented by or in partnership with one or more of the following entities:

- (1) Historically Black Colleges and Universities.
- (2) Tribal Colleges and Universities.
- (3) Minority-serving institutions.

Competitive Preference Priority 2-Serving Students from Families with Low Incomes (up to 8 points).

To meet this priority, applicants must submit a plan to predominantly serve students from families with low incomes.

The plan must include--

- (a) The specific activities the applicant proposes to ensure that the project will predominantly serve students from low-income families, including how the project will recruit and retain students and the supports it will provide to students to promote retention and completion;
 - (b) The timeline for implementing the activities;
 - (c) The parties responsible for implementing the activities;
- (d) The key data sources and measures demonstrating that the project is designed to predominantly serve students from low-income families; and
- (e) Evidence that at least 51 percent of the students to be served by the project are from low-income families.
- (1) When demonstrating that the project is designed to predominantly serve secondary students from low-income families, the applicant must use one or more of the following data sources and measures:
- (A) Children aged 5 through 17 in poverty counted in the most recent census data approved by the Secretary;

- (B) Students eligible for a free or reduced-price lunch under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act (42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.);
- (C) Students whose families receive assistance under the State program funded under part A of title IV of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 601 et seq.);
 - (D) Students who are eligible to receive medical assistance under the Medicaid program;
- (E) Residence in a Census tract, a set of contiguous Census tracts, an American Indian Reservation, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Area (as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau), Alaska Native Village Statistical Area or Alaska Native Regional Corporation Area, Native Hawaiian Homeland Area, or other Tribal land as defined by the Secretary of Labor in guidance, or a county, that has a poverty rate of at least 25 percent as set every 5 years using American Community Survey 5-year data; or
 - (F) A composite of such indicators.
- (2) When demonstrating that the project is designed to predominantly serve secondary students from low-income families, applicants may use data from elementary or middle schools that feed into a secondary school to establish that 51 percent of the students to be served by the project are students from low-income families.

Application Requirements

The FY 2023 Career-Connected High Schools competition NIA includes six application requirements. Applicants are required to respond to all application requirements within the project narrative, except application requirement (a)(7). An applicant must respond to application requirement (a)(7) in an appendix. These application requirements are explained in detail in the NIA.

In addressing the application requirements, applicants must clearly identify which application requirement they are addressing. Except as otherwise provided, an applicant may choose to respond to each requirement separately or in the context of the applicant's responses to the selection criteria. All applicants must meet the application requirements to be considered for funding. Application requirement (a) is from section 114(e)(3) of Perkins V. Application requirements (b) through (f) are from the NFP.

(a) Statutory Application Requirements. Each applicant must:

- (1) Identify and designate the agency, institution, or school responsible for the administration and supervision of the proposed project;
- (2) Describe the budget for the project, including the source and amount of the required matching funds and how the applicant will continue the project after the grant period ends, if applicable;
- (3) Describe how the applicant will use the grant funds, including how such grant funds will directly benefit students, including special populations, served by the applicant;
- (4) Describe how the program assisted under this subsection will be coordinated with the activities carried out under section 124 or 135 of Perkins V;

<u>Note</u>: In addressing this application requirement, applicants need only describe this coordination to the extent the applicant is aware of State leadership activities or local uses of funds under section 124 or 135 of Perkins V.

(5) Describe how the CTE programs and/or programs of study to be implemented with grant funds reflect the needs of regional, State, or local employers, as demonstrated by the comprehensive needs assessment under section 134(c) of Perkins V;

- (6) Describe how the proposed program will be evaluated and how that evaluation may inform the report described in section 114(d)(2)(C) of Perkins V.; and
 - (7) Provide an assurance that the applicant will—
- (A) Provide information to the Secretary, as requested, for evaluations that the Secretary may carry out; and
- (B) Make data available to third parties for validation, in accordance with applicable data privacy laws, including section 444 of the General Education Provisions Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g, commonly known as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974).

(b) Demonstration of Matching Funds.

- (1) Each applicant must provide from non-Federal sources (e.g., State, local, or private sources) an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of funds provided under the grant, which may be provided in cash or through in-kind contributions, to carry out activities supported by the grant unless it receives a waiver due to exceptional circumstances. The applicant must include in its grant application a budget detailing the source of the matching funds or a request to waive the entirety or a portion of the matching requirement due to exceptional circumstances.
- (2) An applicant that is unable to meet the matching requirement must include in its application a request to the Secretary to reduce the matching requirement, including the amount of the requested reduction, the total remaining match contribution, an explanation and evidence of the exceptional circumstances that make it difficult for the applicant to provide matching funds, and an indication as to whether it can carry out its proposed project if the matching requirement is not waived.

(c) Programs of Study.

Each applicant must identify and describe in its application the course sequences in the programs of study that will be offered by high schools in the proposed project, including the associate, bachelor's, advanced degree, or certificate of completion of a Registered Apprenticeship that students may earn by completing each program of study, and how students served by the proposed project will have equitable access to such programs of study.

(d) Secondary and Postsecondary Alignment and Integration.

Each applicant must describe how it has aligned and integrated or will align and integrate the secondary coursework offered to students in funded projects to meet the entrance requirements and expectations for placement in credit-bearing coursework at public, in-state IHEs. If the alignment has not been achieved at the time of application, this description must include a timeline for completion of this work by the end of the first year of the project, as well as information on the persons who will be responsible for these activities and their roles and qualifications.

(e) Articulation and Credit Transfer Agreements.

Each applicant must include in its application an assurance that by no later than the end of the first year of the project, LEAs, and IHEs participating in the project will execute articulation or credit transfer agreements that ensure that postsecondary credits earned by students in dual or concurrent enrollment programs supported by the project will be accepted for transfer at each participating IHE, and other IHEs, if applicable, and count toward the requirements for earning culminating postsecondary credentials for programs of study offered to students through the project.

(f) Dual or Concurrent Enrollment Goals.

Each applicant must include in its application a description of how it will substantially increase the proportion of students who graduate from high school with postsecondary credits earned through participation in

dual or concurrent enrollment programs and how, over the 60-month project period, it also will seek to increase the average number of postsecondary credits earned by students to 12 or more credits.

Program Requirements

The five program requirements for this program are from the NFP.

Program Requirement 1--Matching Contributions.

- (a) A grantee must provide from non-Federal sources (e.g., State, local, or private sources), an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of funds provided under the grant, which may be provided in cash or through inkind contributions, to carry out activities supported by the grant, except that the Secretary may waive the matching funds requirement, on a case-by-case basis, upon a showing of exceptional circumstances, such as (but not limited to)—
 - (1) The difficulty of raising matching funds for a program to serve a rural area.
 - (2) The difficulty of raising matching funds on Tribal land.
- (3) The difficulty of raising matching funds in areas with a concentration of local educational agencies or schools with a high percentage of students aged 5 through 17--
 - (A) who are living in poverty, as counted in the most recent census data approved by the Secretary;
- (B) who are eligible for a free or reduced-price lunch under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act (42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.);
- (C) whose families receive assistance under the State program funded under part A of title IV of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 601 et seq.); or
 - (D) who are eligible to receive medical assistance under the Medicaid program.
- (4) The difficulty of raising matching funds by an IHE that, during the current or preceding year, has been granted a waiver by the Department of certain non-Federal cost-sharing requirements under the Federal Work Study program, the Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants program, or the TRIO Student Support Services program because it has low education and general expenditures and serves a large proportion of students receiving need-based assistance under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (HEA).
- (b) Non-Federal funds used by a grantee to support activities allowable under this program prior to its receipt of the grant may be used to meet the matching requirements of this program. The prohibition against supplanting non-Federal funds in section 211(a) of Perkins V applies to grant funds provided under this program but does not apply to the matching requirement.
- (c) Matching funds provided by a grantee may be met over the full duration of the grant award period, rather than per year, except that the grantee must make progress toward meeting the matching requirement in each year of the grant award period.

Program Requirement 2--Programs of Study.

By no later than the end of the first year of the project, courses in programs of study offered by grantees to students for completion during high school must be designed to meet the entrance requirements and expectations for placement in credit-bearing coursework at public, in-state IHEs. Dual enrollment courses confer postsecondary credit. The programs of study offered to students by grantees may include opportunities to attain an industry-recognized credential or a postsecondary certificate that participating students may earn during high school, but must culminate with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program upon completion of additional postsecondary education after high school graduation.

Program Requirement 3--Independent Evaluation.

- (a) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must, in accordance with instructions and definitions provided by the Secretary, report annually the number and percentage of students who graduated from high schools served by the proposed project who, prior to or upon graduation--
- (1) Earned, through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or CTE subject areas--
 - (i) any postsecondary credits; and, separately,
- (ii) 12 or more postsecondary credits that are part of a program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program.
- (2) Completed 40 or more hours of work-based learning for which they received wages or academic credit, or both.
- (3) Attained an industry-recognized credential that is in-demand in the local, regional, or State labor market and associated with one or more jobs with median earnings that exceed the median earnings of a high school graduate.
- (4) Met, in each year of high school, with a school counselor, college adviser, career coach, or other appropriately trained adult for education and career counseling during which they reviewed and updated a personalized postsecondary educational and career plan.
 - (b) The outcomes described in paragraph (a) must be disaggregated by--
- (1) Subgroups of students, described in section 1111(c)(2)(B) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA);
 - (2) Special populations;
 - (3) Sex; and
 - (4) Each CTE program and program of study.
- (c) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must report annually on the extent to which CTE participants and CTE concentrators in each CTE program or program of study reflect the demographics of the school, including sex, major racial and ethnic groups, and special populations status.
- (d) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must also report annually on the average number of postsecondary credits earned by students through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or career and technical education subject areas and any project-specific indicators identified by the grantee.

Program Requirement 4--Final MOU.

Within 120 days of receipt of its grant award, each grantee that submitted a partnership application must submit a final MOU among all partner entities that describes the roles and responsibilities of the partners in carrying out the project and its activities.

Program Requirement 5--Project Implementation Plan and Timeline.

Each grantee must have a project plan that includes an implementation timeline with benchmarks to implement the four keys to career-connected learning for students served by the project, as described in Absolute Priority 1, by no later than the end of the fifth year of the project. Each grantee will submit a report documenting progress on the implementation plan and the timeline on an annual basis.

Selection Criteria for Project Narrative

The Project Narrative should describe the project that an applicant would carry out if funded and include the eligible applicant's response to the selection criteria since the application will be evaluated and scored against these criteria. The maximum possible score for each selection criterion is indicated in the NIA and in this application package. Each criterion includes the factors that reviewers will consider in determining the extent to which an applicant meets the criterion. All applicants are required to respond to each of the selection criteria in the NIA published in the Federal Register. Peer reviewers will assess applications based on the selection criteria. No outside factors, such as personal knowledge of past performance, or subjective judgments about what an application should contain may be considered. Please note that within each criterion factors have specific points associated with them. The application should be a comprehensive design for the proposed project. Therefore, reviewers will be directed to read the application in its entirety to determine the overall quality of the proposed project and the quality of the applicant's response to each criterion.

Peer reviewer comments and scores reflect the overall assessment of the quality of the response. Comments indicate why the applicant's response to each selection criterion is excellent, very good, good, fair, poor, or not addressed. Scores indicate how well or poorly the applicant responded to a selection criterion.

Suggested Point Ranges for Rating Applicant Responses to the Selection Criteria

This suggested scoring range chart will be provided to peer reviewers to assist in the reviewing and scoring of the eligible applicant's response to the selection criteria. It is included here for the applicants' reference. Reviewers can use this when scoring each factor that correspond to each criterion. Scores indicate how well or poorly the applicant responded to a selection criterion.

Shown below are suggested point ranges for an evaluation of each sub-criterion of the selection criteria:

Maximum	m Quality of applicant's response per sub-criterion			
point	Not Addressed	Partially Developed	Good	Excellent
value				
2	0	1	1-2	2
3	0	1	2	3
4	0	1-2	3	4
5	0	1-2	3-4	5
6	0	1-3	4-5	6
7	0	1-3	4-6	7
8	0	1-4	5-7	8

The suggested point range for Competitive Preference Priorities are shown below:

Maximum	Quality of applicant's response to Competitive Preference Priorities			
point value	Not Addressed	Partially Developed	Good	Excellent
2	0	1	1-2	2
5	0	2-3	3-4	5
8	0	1-4	5-7	8

Selection Criteria

(a) Significance (up to 6 points).

In determining the significance of the proposed project, the Department proposes to consider one or more of the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the proposed project addresses a regional or local labor market need identified through a comprehensive local needs assessment carried out under section 134(c) of Perkins V or labor market information produced by the State or other entity that demonstrates the proposed project will address State, regional, or local labor market needs (up to 3 points).
- (2) The extent to which the proposed project addresses significant barriers to enrollment and completion in Dual or Concurrent Enrollment Programs and will expand access to these programs for students served by the project (up to 3 points).

(b) Quality of the Project Design (up to 44 points).

In determining the quality of the project design, the Department proposes to consider one or more of the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the proposed project is likely to be effective in increasing the successful participation in Dual or Concurrent Enrollment Programs (as defined by section 3 of Perkins V) by students who are not currently participating in such programs, and the likely magnitude of the increase (up to 8 points).
- (2) The extent to which the proposed project will increase the successful participation in Work-Based Learning opportunities (as defined by section 3 of Perkins V) for which they received wages or academic credit, or both, prior to graduation by students who are not currently participating in such opportunities, and the likely magnitude of the increase (up to 8 points).
- (3) The extent to which the proposed project is likely to be effective in increasing successful participation in opportunities to attain an in-demand and high-value Industry-Recognized Credential that is sought or accepted by multiple employers within an industry or sector as a recognized, preferred, or required credential for recruitment, hiring, retention, or advancement by students who are not currently participating in such opportunities, and the likely magnitude of the increase (up to 8 points).
- (4) The extent to which the proposed project will implement strategies that are likely to be effective in eliminating or mitigating barriers to the successful participation by all students in dual or concurrent programs (as defined by section 3 of Perkins V), Work-Based Learning opportunities (as defined by section 3 of Perkins V), and opportunities to attain in-demand and high-value Industry-Recognized Credentials, including such barriers as the out-of-pocket costs of tuition, books, and examination fees; transportation; and eligibility requirements that do not include multiple measures of assessing academic readiness (up to 8 points).
- (5) The extent to which the proposed project will provide all students effective and ongoing Career Guidance and Academic Counseling (as defined by section 3 of Perkins V) in each year of high school that--
- (A) Will likely result, by no later than the end of the second year of the project, in a personalized postsecondary education and career plan for each student that is updated at least once annually with the assistance of a school counselor, career coach, mentor, or other adult trained to provide career guidance and counseling to high school students (up to 6 points); and
- (B) Includes the provision of current labor market information about careers in high-demand fields that pay living wages; advice and assistance in identifying, preparing for, and applying for postsecondary educational opportunities; information on Federal student financial aid programs; and assistance in applying for Federal student financial aid (up to 2 points).
- (6) The extent to which the proposed project is likely to prepare all students served by the project to enroll in postsecondary education following high school without need for remediation (up to 4 points).

(c) Quality of Project Services (up to 8 points).

- (1) In determining the quality of the services to be provided by the proposed project, the Department considers the quality and sufficiency of strategies for ensuring equal access and treatment for eligible project participants who are members of groups that have traditionally been underrepresented based on race, color, national origin, gender, age, or disability.
- (2) In addition, the Department considers the extent to which the services to be provided by the proposed project are focused on those with greatest needs.

(d) Quality of the Management Plan (up to 32 points).

In determining the quality of the management plan, the Department proposes to consider one or more of the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the project goals are clear, complete, and coherent, and the extent to which the project activities constitute a complete plan aligned to those goals, including the identification of potential risks to project success and strategies to mitigate those risks (up to 7 points);
- (2) The extent to which the management plan articulates key responsibilities for each party involved in the project and also articulates well-defined objectives, including the timelines and milestones for completion of major project activities, the metrics that will be used to assess progress on an ongoing basis, and annual Performance Targets the applicant will use to monitor whether the project is achieving its goals (up to 7 points);
- (3) The adequacy of the project's staffing plan, particularly for the first year of the project, including:
- (A) The identification of the project director and, in the case of projects with unfilled key personnel positions at the beginning of the project, a description of how critical work will proceed (up to 3 points); and
- (B) The extent to which the project director has experience managing projects similar in scope to that of the proposed project (up to 3 points).
- (4) The extent of the demonstrated commitment of any partners whose participation is critical to the project's long-term success, including the extent of any evidence of support or specific resources from employers and other stakeholders (up to 6 points).
- (5) The extent to which employers in the labor market served by the proposed project will be involved in making decisions with respect to the project's implementation and in carrying out its activities (up to 6 points).

(e) Quality of the Project Evaluation (up to 10 points).

In determining the quality of the evaluation, the Secretary considers one or more of the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the methods of evaluation will provide valid and reliable performance data on Relevant Outcomes (up to 5 points); and
- (2) The extent to which the methods of evaluation will provide performance feedback and permit periodic assessment of progress toward achieving intended outcomes (up to 5 points).

Note: Applicants may wish to review the following technical assistance resources on evaluation:

(1) The What Works Clearinghouse (WWC) Procedures and Standards Handbooks:

https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/wwc/Handbooks; (2) "Technical Assistance Materials for Conducting Rigorous Impact Evaluations": http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/projects/evaluationTA.asp; and (3) IES/NCEE Technical Methods papers: http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/tech_methods/.

In addition, applicants may view an optional webinar recording that was hosted by the Institute of Education Sciences, focused on more rigorous evaluation designs, discussing strategies for designing and executing

experimental studies that meet WWC evidence standards without reservations. This webinar is available at: http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/wwc/Multimedia.aspx?sid=18.

(f) Support for Rural Communities (up to 10 points).

In determining the extent of the project's support for Rural Communities, the Department proposes to consider one or more of the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the applicant presents a clear, well-documented plan for primarily serving students from Rural Communities (up to 3 points); and
- (2) The extent to which the applicant proposes a project that will improve the education and employment outcomes of students in Rural Communities (up to 7 points).

Review and Selection Process

We remind potential applicants that in reviewing applications in any discretionary grant competition, the Secretary may consider, under 34 CFR 75.217(d)(3), the past performance of the applicant in carrying out a previous award, such as the applicant's use of funds, achievement of project objectives, and compliance with grant conditions. The Secretary may also consider whether the applicant failed to submit a timely performance report or submitted a report of unacceptable quality. In addition, in making a competitive grant award, the Secretary requires various assurances, including those applicable to Federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance from the Department (34 CFR 100.4, 104.5, 106.4, 108.8, and 110.23).

Before making awards, we will screen applications submitted in accordance with the requirements in this notice to determine whether applications have met eligibility and other requirements. This screening process may occur at various stages of the process; applicants that are determined to be ineligible will not receive a grant, regardless of peer reviewer scores or comments. Peer reviewers will read, prepare a written evaluation of, and score the assigned applications, using the selection criteria provided in this notice.

Risk Assessment and Special Conditions

Consistent with 2 CFR 200.205, before awarding grants under this competition the Department conducts a review of the risks posed by applicants. Under 2 CFR 3474.10, the Secretary may impose special conditions and, in appropriate circumstances, high-risk conditions on a grant if the applicant or grantee is not financially stable; has a history of unsatisfactory performance; has a financial or other management system that does not meet the standards in 2 CFR part 200, subpart D; has not fulfilled the conditions of a prior grant; or is otherwise not responsible.

Integrity and Performance System

If you are selected under this competition to receive an award that over the course of the project period may exceed the simplified acquisition threshold (currently \$250,000), under 2 CFR 200.206(a)(2) we must make a judgment about your integrity, business ethics, and record of performance under Federal awards – that is, the risk posed by you as an applicant – before we make an award. In doing so, we must consider any information about you that is in the integrity and performance system (currently referred to as the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)), accessible through SAM. You may review and comment on any information about yourself that a Federal agency previously entered and that is currently in FAPIIS. Please note that, if the total value of your currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from the Federal Government exceeds \$10,000,000, the reporting requirements in 2 CFR part 200, Appendix XII, require

you to report certain integrity information to FAPIIS semiannually. Please review the requirements in 2 CFR part 200, Appendix XII, if this grant plus all the other Federal funds you receive exceed \$10,000,000.

PART 5: BUDGET NARRATIVE

The budget narratives should be attached as a **single** document to the Budget Narrative Attachment Form in accordance with the instructions found on <u>Grants.gov</u>.

Ensure that you only attach the U.S. Department of Education approved file types detailed in the NIA (read-only, non-modifiable .pdf files). Also, do not upload any password-protected files to your application. Lengthy file names could result in difficulties with opening and processing your application. We recommend your file names be less than 50 characters.

In accordance with 34 CFR 75.232, Department of Education staff perform a cost analysis of each project recommended for funding to ensure that costs relate to the activities and objectives of the project, are **reasonable**, **allowable**, **and allocable**. The budget should only include costs that are allowable, reasonable, and necessary for carrying out the objectives of the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program project. The budget should include an annual budget for all 5 years of the proposed project. Rules about allowable costs are set out in 2 C.F.R. 200, as adopted by the Department at 2 C.F.R. 3474.

- Each application must also provide a Budget Narrative (which serves to meet the requirements of ED Form 524, Section C) for requested Federal funds. The Budget Narrative for requested Federal funds should provide a justification of how the money requested for each budget item will be spent.
- This section requires an itemized budget breakdown for each project year and the basis for estimating the costs of personnel salaries, benefits, project staff travel, materials and supplies, consultants and subcontracts, indirect costs, and any other projected expenditures. Be sure to complete an itemized budget breakdown and narrative for each year of the proposed project.
- The Budget Narrative provides an opportunity for the applicant to identify the nature and amount of the proposed expenditures. The applicant should provide sufficient detail to enable reviewers and project staff to understand how requested funds will be used, how much will be expended, and the relationship between the requested funds and project activities and outcomes.
- In accordance with 34 CFR 75.232, Department of Education staff perform a cost analysis of each recommended project to ensure that costs relate to the activities and objectives of the project, are reasonable, allowable, and allocable. We may delete or reduce costs from the budget during this review.

Important Notes

Applicants are encouraged to review the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations Uniform Guidance, Cost Principles in preparing their budget and budget narrative.

The Uniform Guidance may be found at the following link:

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200 main 02.tpl

For each line item of both Sections A (federal costs) and B (non-federal costs/ match costs) of the Budget Form (ED 524), provide detailed costs (in whole dollars) accompanied by a narrative justification to support your request. Also, please note that, in Section B, an applicant shows the funds or in-kind donations it proposes to use to meet the matching requirement as well as any other match funds or in-kind donations that it proposes to use to support its Career-Connected High School project.

For example, an applicant that requests \$1,000,000 must secure \$500,000 in matching funds; therefore, the project budget narrative would reflect how the total proposed budget of \$1,500,000 will be expended. If an applicant is submitting with its application a request for a reduction of the 50% matching requirement, the applicant may show in Section B the amount of match funds or in-kind donations it intends to use to support its project consistent with that request.

Please check all figures and combined totals in the budget narrative and compare the amounts with those reflected on the ED 524.

In a **single** document attached to the Budget Narrative Attachment Form, each application must provide the following two budget narratives:

1. Federal Funds Budget Narrative

This first budget narrative must align with and break down the costs budgeted in **Section A of ED Form 524**. Section A - Budget Summary: U.S. Department of Education Funds should include all Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program funds requested in support of the proposed project. See "Further Instructions for the Budget Narratives" for the expected format and level of detail.

2. Non-Federal Funds Budget Narrative

There is a 50 percent match requirement for the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program. This second budget narrative must align with and break down the costs budgeted in **Section B of ED Form 524**. Section B - Budget Summary: Non-Federal Funds should include any non-Federal program funds, including inkind resources, that will be used to provide the required 50 percent match. If the applicant or a project partner plans to contribute services or materials as part of the project's match, the value of those services or materials should be included in Section B of ED Form 524 and calculated according to 2 C.F.R. 200.306 and cost principles in Uniform Guidance at 2 C.F.R. 200.

IMPORTANT NOTE: Section 75.700 of the Education Department General Administrative regulations (EDGAR) (34 C.F.R. 75.700) requires each grantee to comply with the content of its approved application. Therefore, if an application is approved, the grantee is responsible for fulfilling its commitment of funds/in-kind resources set forth in Section B of ED Form 524 included in its application.

The budget narratives will serve to meet the requirements of Section C of ED Form 524. They should provide sufficient detail to:

Give an **itemized budget breakdown** for each year of the proposed project (60 months);

Show the **basis for estimating the costs** of personnel salaries, benefits, project staff travel, materials and supplies, consultants and subcontracts, indirect costs and any other projected expenditures;

Show the **relationship** between all budgeted funds and project activities and outcomes;

Show the total **amount that will be expended** as shown in the ED Form 524;

Enable reviewers and project staff to understand how grant funds and non-federal funds/in-kind resources in the ED Form 524 will be used.

Suggested Instructions for the Budget Narrative

To facilitate the review of your Budget Narrative, we encourage each applicant to include the following information for each year of the project:

1. Personnel

- Provide the title and duties of each position to be compensated under this project and the importance of each position to the success of the project.
- Provide the salary for each position under this project.
- Provide the amount of time (such as hours or percentage of time) to be spent by each position on this project.

- Project Director Time Commitment: Applicants are requested to provide the percent of the Project Director's time that will be dedicated to the grant project if funded. For example, if the Project Director works 40 hours per week and spends 20 hours of that week working on grant activities, then the time commitment for the Project Director would be 50 percent. We suggest that applicants include this information in the budget narrative or that they add this information to the Project Director line on the Supplemental Information for Standard Form 424.
- Provide the basis for cost estimates or computations.
- Fees and expenses for consultants, if included, should be included under Contractual (line 6).

2. Fringe Benefits

- Give the fringe benefit percentages of all personnel included under <u>Personnel</u>.
- Provide the rate and base on which fringe benefits are calculated.
- Do not include fringe benefits for salaries and wages that are treated as part of the indirect cost.
- Leave the line blank if needed.

3. Travel

- Explain the purpose of the travel, how it aligns to the project goals and objectives, and who will travel.
- Provide an estimate for the number of trips and points of origin and destination.
- Provide an estimated cost for each trip.
- Include travel for **2 project representatives** to attend an annual Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program grantee meeting in Washington, DC for each year of the project.
- Travel for consultants or contractors should be included under Contractual (line 6).

4. Equipment

- Indicate the cost of tangible, non-expendable personal property that has a usefulness greater than one year and acquisition costs that are the lesser of the capitalization level established by the applicant entity for financial statement purposes or \$5,000 per article. Lower limits may be established to maintain consistency with the applicant's purchasing policy.
- Indicate the type and estimated unit cost for each item to be purchased.
- Provide strong justification of the need for items of equipment to be purchased.
- Provide the basis for cost estimates or computations.

5. Supplies

- Supplies purchased with grant funds should directly benefit the project and be necessary for achieving project goals.
- Direct supplies and materials differ from equipment in that they are consumable, expendable, and of a relatively low unit cost. Provide an estimate of supplies by nature of expense or general category (e.g., instructional materials, office supplies, etc.).
- Explain the purpose of the supplies and how they relate to project success.
- Provide the basis for cost estimates or computations.

• Individual pieces of equipment that are under \$5,000 per unit are generally considered supplies. However, as noted in the example under Equipment, an applicant's organization may have a different equipment policy.

6. Contractual

- The contractual category should include all costs specifically incurred with actions that the applicant takes in conjunction with an established internal procurement system. Include consultant fees, expenses, and travel costs in this category if the consultant's services are obtained through a written binding agreement or contract.
- Describe the products to be acquired, and/or the professional services to be provided.
- Provide the purpose of the product(s) and/or services and their relation to project success.
- Contractors are not to be named in an application since contracts will be competed following the award of a grant. If an applicant proposes in its application to use an existing contract or prior selection of any vendor for any activities to be supported with Federal Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program funds (or other Federal grant funds), the applicant must be prepared to demonstrate how it is in compliance with the "Procurement Practices" described in the "Application Information" section of this application package. Additionally, if an applicant intends to take advantage of the flexibility allowed in 34 C.F.R. 75.135 in order to use small purchase procurement procedures for contracts for data collection, data analysis, evaluation services or essential services, the applicant should carefully review the requirements in 34 C.F.R. 75.135 to ensure all required information is included in the application and budget narrative.
- Provide the projected cost per contractor and basis for cost estimates.
- For professional services contracts, provide the amounts of time to be devoted to the project, including the costs to be charged to this proposed grant award.

7. Construction

• Not applicable.

8. Other

- Indicate all direct costs not covered on lines 1-6. *Do not include costs that are included in the indirect cost rate.*
- List and identify items by major type or category (e.g., communications, printing, postage, equipment rental, etc.).
- Provide the purpose for the expenditures and their relation to the proposed comprehensive strategy that will be implemented during the project period.
- Provide the cost per item (printing = \$500, postage = \$150) and the basis for cost estimates or computations.

9. Total Direct Costs

• The sum total of all direct expenditures, per budget category, of lines 1-8.

10. Indirect Costs

• The Department of Education (ED) generally reimburses a grantee for its indirect costs. These kinds of costs generally are recovered through an indirect cost rate that the grantee negotiates with its cognizant agency for indirect costs.

- The statute authorizing the Perkins Innovation and Modernization program contains a supplement- not-supplant provision that requires a reduction in the indirect cost rate so that costs that are unallowable under the supplement-not-supplant program are not recovered through the indirect cost rate. To ensure that these types of costs are not recovered, ED has established a restricted indirect cost rate. The detailed requirements of restricted rates are in the Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR) at §\$75.563 and 76.563-569.
- All grantees under supplement-not-supplant programs may only recover indirect costs at the restricted rate. For guidance on how to calculate the restricted rate, an applicant that already has a negotiated indirect cost rate and that plans to submit an application under this program should review ED's website at: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocfo/fipao/icgindex.html
- The applicant should then use this separate, restricted rate in projecting indirect costs in the budget submitted with its application.
- Applicants may have an accountant calculate a proposed restricted indirect cost rate using current
 information from their audited financial statements and actual cost data. Applicants should use this
 proposed restricted rate in their application materials and describe which of these methods they used to
 calculate the rate. Guidance related to calculating a restricted indirect cost rate can be found on ED's
 website at the above referenced link.
- Applicants must bear in mind that items of cost excluded from restricted indirect cost rates may not be charged to grants as direct cost items, nor may they be used to satisfy matching or cost-sharing requirements under a grant or charged to other Federal awards.
- If an applicant (that is not a State or local government) selected for funding under a restricted rate program has not already established a current indirect cost rate with its cognizant agency as a result of current or previous funding, ED generally will authorize the grantee to use a temporary rate of 10 percent of budgeted direct salaries and wages.
- Use of the temporary rate of 10 percent of budgeted direct salaries and wages is subject to the following limitations:
 - 1. The grantee must submit an indirect cost rate proposal its cognizant agency within 90 days after ED issues the GAN.
 - 2. If after the 90-day period, the grantee has not submitted an indirect cost rate proposal to its cognizant agency, the grantee may not charge its grant for indirect costs (except when ED finds exceptional circumstances) until it has negotiated an indirect cost rate agreement with its cognizant agency.
 - 3. The grantee may only recover indirect costs incurred on or after the date it submitted its indirect cost rate proposal to its cognizant agency or at the start of the of the project period, whichever of the two occurs later.
 - 4. The total amount of funds recovered by the grantee under the federally recognized indirect cost rate is reduced by the amount of indirect costs previously recovered under the temporary indirect cost rate.
 - 5. The grantee must obtain prior approval from ED to shift direct costs to indirect costs in order to recover indirect costs at a higher negotiated indirect cost rate.
 - 6. The grantee may not request additional funds to recover indirect costs that it cannot recover by shifting direct costs to indirect costs.
- If an applicant other than a State or local government does not want to negotiate a restricted rate with its cognizant agency, the applicant has the option of charging indirect costs at 8 percent of the MTDC of its

grant for the life of the grant in accordance with EDGAR §76.564(c), unless ED determines that the actual restricted indirect cost rate is lower than 8 percent of MTDC1. If a non-governmental applicant chooses to charge indirect costs at 8 percent of its MTDC, it must maintain records available for audit, demonstrating that the applicant incurred indirect costs of at least 8 percent of MTDC.

- If this grant is made to a government under a program subject to a supplement-not-supplant requirement, the grantee must notify the cognizant agency that the grant is subject to a restricted indirect cost rate, as calculated under EDGAR §75.563 and §§76.564-76.569 and must provide ED's Indirect Cost Group with a copy of its indirect cost proposal. The Indirect Cost Group reviews the proposal and adjusts costs, as appropriate, to reduce the rate to the required restricted indirect cost rate.
- Applicants should be aware that ED is very often not the cognizant agency for its own grantees. For restricted indirect cost rates, ED will negotiate the rate with grantees and provide the approved restricted rate to the cognizant agency for inclusion on the rate agreement.
- Applicants with questions about using restricted indirect cost rates under this program should contact the program contact person shown in the NIA.

11. Training Stipends

- The training stipend line item only pertains to costs associated with long term training programs and college or university coursework, not workshops or short-term training or professional development offerings.
- Costs associated with professional development should be included under Other (line 8).

12. Total Costs

- Sum total of direct costs, indirect costs, and stipends.
- Please provide total costs for each year and for the entire project period (60 months).

PART 6: OTHER ATTACHMENT FORM

Applicants should **attach all appendices to the Other Attachments Form**. For each appendix, applicants are asked to save files as a .PDF, label each file with the Appendix name and upload the file to the Other Attachments Form. The Other Attachments Form can support up to ten attachments.

Ensure that you only attach the U.S. Department of Education approved file types detailed in the NIA (read-only, non-modifiable .pdf files). Also, do not upload any password-protected files to your application.

Please note that Grants.gov cannot process an application that includes two or more files that have the same name within a grant submission.

When attaching files, applicants should limit the size of their file names. Lengthy file names could result in difficulties with opening and processing your application. We recommend your file names be less than 50 characters.

Instructions for Appendix

Applica	ants are encouraged to follow the order below when uploading information to the Appendix:
	Appendix A: Signed consortium agreement, if applicable
	Appendix B: Individual Resumes for Project Director and Key Personnel
	Appendix C: Letters of Commitment from project partners, if applicable
	Appendix D: List of rural locale codes and demonstration of rural eligibility, if applicable
;	Applicants are strongly encouraged to complete the rural eligibility checklist on page 40. Applicants applying as rural are encouraged to retrieve locale codes from the National Center for Education Statistics School District search tool (https://nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/), where districts can be looked up individually to retrieve locale codes.
	Appendix E: Current Indirect Cost Rate Agreement
	Appendix F: List of proprietary information found in the application, if applicable
	Appendix G: Demonstration of match or a request for a waiver to reduce the match
	Appendix H: Pursuant to Application Requirement (g) in Section 114 (e), applicants must submit a signed letter of assurance that the applicant will:
	(i)provide information to the Secretary, as requested, for evaluations that the Secretary may carry out; and
	(ii) make data available to third parties for validation, in accordance with applicable data privacy laws, including section 444 of the General Education Provisions Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g, commonly known as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974).
	Appendix I: Assurances

PART 7: ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS

https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/gepa427.pdf)

Be certain to complete all required assurances and certifications in Grants.gov and include all required information in the appropriate place on each form.

□ Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (SF LLL Form) Refer to instructions provided at the following link: https://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/instructions/SFLLL_2_0-V2.0-Instructions.pdf
 □ Grants.Gov Lobbying Form – "Certification Regarding Lobbying" (ED 80-013 Form) Refer to the instructions provided at the following link: https://apply07.grants.gov/apply/forms/instructions/GG_LobbyingForm-V1.1-Instructions.pdf
 □ General Education Provisions Act (GEPA) Requirements – Section 427 Refer to Form Overview and Instructions provided at the following link: https://www2.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/gepa-section-427-instructions-for-application-packages.pdf (GEPA Form provided at the following link:

PART 8: INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372)

This program falls under the rubric of Executive Order 12372 (Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs) and the regulations in 34 CFR Part 79. One of the objectives of the Executive order is to strengthen federalism--or the distribution of responsibility between localities, States, and the Federal government--by fostering intergovernmental partnerships. This idea includes supporting processes that State or local governments have devised for coordinating and reviewing proposed Federal financial grant applications.

The process for doing this requires grant applicants to contact State Single Points of Contact for information on how this works. Multi-state applicants should follow procedures specific to each state.

Further information about the State Single Point of Contact process and a list of names by State can be found at: Intergovernmental Review (SPOC List) (whitehouse.gov)

Absent specific State review programs, applicants may submit comments directly to the Department. All recommendations and comments must be mailed or hand-delivered by the date indicated in the actual application notice to the following address:

The Secretary, EO 12372—84.051F

U.S. Department of Education

400 Maryland Avenue, SW., room 7E200

Washington, DC 20202.

Proof of mailing will be determined on the same basis as applications (see 34 CFR §75.102). Recommendations or comments may be hand-delivered until 4:30 p.m. (Eastern Time) on the closing date indicated in this notice.

Important note: The above address is not the same address as the one to which the applicant submits its completed applications. *Do not send applications to the above address*.

OPTIONAL APPLICATION PACKAGE ATTACHMENTS

Optional Checklist for Documenting Rural Eligibility and Locale Codes

Instructions: This optional document captures how an applicant might document the eligibility requirements for rural applicants. In the designated sections below, applicants can provide information to support how they meet the described requirement and include page numbers as necessary.

To qualify as a rural applicant under the Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program, an applicant must meet Absolute Priority 3 and meet at least <u>one</u> of the following requirements:

(a) The applicant is:
☐ (1) A local educational agency with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary;
\square (2) An institution of higher education primarily serving one or more areas served by an LEA with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary;
\square (3) A consortium of such LEAs or such IHEs described in clause (1) or (2), above;
\Box (4) An educational service agency or a nonprofit organization in partnership with such an LEA or such an IHE, in clause (1) or (2), above; or
\square (5) An applicant described in clause (1) or (2) in partnership with an SEA.
Note: Applicants are encouraged to retrieve locale codes from the National Center for Education Statistics School District search tool (https://nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch), where districts can be looked up individually to retrieve locale codes.
Identify applicant type above and provide supporting information, including locale codes, below:

VIII. REPORTING AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Successful Applicants with multi-year grants must submit an annual performance report demonstrating their progress in meeting approved project objectives. Grantees must also provide the most current financial and performance measure data for each year of the project. At the end of the project period, applicants will also be required to submit a final performance report.

Performance Measures

For purposes of Department reporting under 34 CFR 75.110, the Department has developed the following performance measures for this program.

Each grantee will be required to conduct an independent evaluation (and submit an annual report) that includes a description of how PIM grant funds were used; student outcomes, as applicable, using the Perkins V section 113 core indicators of performance; and a quantitative analysis of the effectiveness of the PIM grant project.

Additionally, under Program Requirement 3, all grantees will be required to propose performance targets consistent with the objectives of the proposed project and report annually the number and percentage of students who graduated from high schools served by the proposed project who, prior to or upon graduation--

- (1) Earned, through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or CTE subject areas --
 - (i) any postsecondary credits; and, separately,
- (ii) 12 or more postsecondary credits that are part of a program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program.
- (2) Completed 40 or more hours of work-based learning for which they received wages or academic credit, or both.
- (3) Attained an industry-recognized credential that is in-demand in the local, regional, or State labor market and associated with one or more jobs with median earnings that exceed the median earnings of a high school graduate.
- (4) Met, in each year of high school, with a school counselor, college adviser, career coach, or other appropriately trained adult for education and career counseling during which they reviewed and updated a personalized postsecondary educational and career plan (as defined in this notice).
 - (b) The outcomes described in paragraph (a) must be disaggregated by--
 - (1) Subgroups of students described in section 1111(c)(2)(B) of the ESEA; and
 - (2) Special populations;
 - (3) Sex; and
 - (4) Each CTE program and program of study.
- (c) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must report annually on the extent to which CTE participants and CTE concentrators in each CTE program or program of study reflect the demographics of the school, including sex, major racial and ethnic groups, and special populations status.
- (d) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must also report annually on the average number of postsecondary credits earned by students through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment

programs in academic or career and technical education subject areas and any project-specific indicators identified by the grantee.

Project-Specific Performance Measures

Applicants must propose project-specific performance measures and performance targets consistent with the objectives of the proposed project.

Applications must provide the following information as directed under 34 CFR 75.110(b) and (c):

- (a) Performance Measures. How each proposed performance measure would accurately measure the performance of the project and how the proposed performance measures would be consistent with the performance measures established for the program funding the competition.
- (b) Baseline Data.
- (i) Why each proposed baseline is valid; or
- (ii) If the applicant has determined that there are no established baseline data for a particular performance measure, an explanation of why there is no established baseline and of how and when, during the project period, the applicant would establish a valid baseline for the performance measure.
- (c) Performance Targets. Why each proposed performance target is ambitious yet achievable compared to the baseline for the performance measure and when, during the project period, the applicant would meet the performance target(s).
- (d) Data Collection and Reporting.
- (i) The data collection and reporting methods the applicant would use and why those methods are likely to yield reliable, valid, and meaningful performance data; and
- (ii) The applicant's capacity to collect and report reliable, valid, and meaningful performance data, as evidenced by high-quality data collection, analysis, and reporting in other projects or research.

For specific requirements on grantee reporting, please go to the ED Performance Report Form 524B at http://www.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/appforms.html.

IX. NOTICE INVITING APPLICATIONS

4000-01-U

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Applications for New Awards; Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program

AGENCY: Office of Career, Technical, and Adult Education, Department of Education.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Department of Education (ED or Department) is issuing a notice inviting applications for new awards for fiscal year (FY) 2023 for the Perkins Innovation and Modernization (PIM) grant program, Assistance Listing Number 84.051F. This notice relates to the approved information collection under OMB control number 1830-0583.

DATES:

Applications Available: August 14, 2023.

Deadline for Notice of Intent to Apply: Applicants are strongly encouraged, but not required, to submit a notice of intent to apply by September 13, 2023.

Date of Pre-Application Webinar: For information about a pre-application webinar or potential future webinars, visit the Perkins Collaborative Resource Network (PCRN) at http://cte.ed.gov/.

Deadline for Transmittal of Applications: October 13, 2023.

Deadline for Intergovernmental Review: December 12, 2023.

ADDRESSES: For the addresses for obtaining and submitting an application, please refer to our Common Instructions for Applicants to Department of Education Discretionary Grant Programs, published in the *Federal Register* on December 7, 2022 (87 FR 75045), and available at https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/07/2022-26554/common-instructions-for-applicants-to-department-of-education-discretionary-grant-programs.

Please note that these Common Instructions supersede the version published on December 27, 2021.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Dr. Charles "Bryan" Jenkins, U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, SW, room 4A192, Washington, DC 20202. Telephone: 202-987-0815. Email: PIMGrants@ed.gov.

If you are deaf, hard of hearing, or have a speech disability and wish to access telecommunications relay services, please dial 7-1-1.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Full Text of Announcement

I. Funding Opportunity Description

<u>Purpose of Program</u>: The purpose of the PIM grant program is to identify, support, and rigorously evaluate evidence-based and innovative strategies and activities to improve and modernize career and technical education

(CTE) and ensure workforce skills taught in CTE programs funded under the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, as amended by the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Perkins V), align with labor market needs.

Background: The PIM grant program, authorized under section 114(e) of Perkins V, supports evidence-based educational programs and practices to improve and modernize CTE. Raise the Bar: Lead the World¹ is the Department's call to action to transform prekindergarten through grade 12 education through evidence-based practices and strategies that advance educational equity and excellence. Within this call to action is Raise the Bar: Unlocking Career Success, an interagency initiative across the U.S. Departments of Education, Labor, and Commerce, that reimagines how our nation's high schools prepare all students to thrive in their future careers by providing students with accelerated and innovative opportunities to earn college credits and gain career experiences. This Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 PIM grant program competition advances the goals of Raise the Bar: Unlocking Career Success through priorities that seek to prepare all young people more equitably and effectively for further learning and economic advancement in rewarding careers.

With this competition, the Department seeks to support applicants that will build capacity among secondary education, postsecondary education, and workforce development systems to expand access to career-connected high school programs for more students. As described below, the four strategies, or "keys," to career-connected high schools are evidence-based strategies that support students in the connections and transition between high school, postsecondary education, and careers. Under Absolute Priority 1, applicants will be required to describe the extent to which they are currently implementing career-connected learning and provide a plan for how they will increase the proportion of students who graduate from high school with these four keys to unlock their career success:

- <u>Postsecondary Education and Career Navigation System</u>. Participation in a comprehensive postsecondary education and career navigation system that supports career exploration and education planning, provides information and assistance in pursuing further learning after high school, and includes the development and regular updating of a personalized postsecondary education and career plan (as defined in this notice) throughout high school;
- <u>Dual or Concurrent Enrollment</u>. Postsecondary credits earned from dual or concurrent enrollment programs (as defined in this notice) within a clearly defined program of study (as defined in this notice) to give students a head start in earning a postsecondary credential;

44

¹ U.S. Secretary of Education Miguel Cardona laid out his vision for the direction the Department will follow in fiscal year 2023 to promote academic excellence, improve learning conditions, and prepare students for a world where global engagement is critical to our Nation's standing. More information is available at https://www.ed.gov/raisethebar.

- Work-Based Learning. Participation in work-based learning opportunities (as defined in this notice) for which students receive wages or academic credit, or both; and
- <u>Industry-Recognized Credential</u>. Attainment of an in-demand and high-value industry-recognized credential (as defined in this notice) so that every young person can earn a living wage after high school, open more doors to pursue further education, and live independently.

The four keys to career-connected learning are evidence-based² and have broad support. According to an analysis by the National Governors Association, at least 31 Governors focused in their 2023 State of the State addresses on expanding CTE and workforce development opportunities for high school students.³ Virginia Governor Glenn Youngkin advocated for strong partnerships between community colleges and high schools so that every high school student can earn an industry-recognized or postsecondary credential in high school.⁴ Oklahoma Governor Kevin Stitt called for expanding dual enrollment programming so that high school students can more easily earn college credits. Montana Governor Greg Gianforte recommended expanding work-based learning opportunities that allow students to obtain on-the-job experience and apply that experience to their high school graduation requirements.⁵ They join governors, such as Washington Governor Jay Inslee, California Governor Gavin Newsom, and Ohio Governor Mike DeWine, who have championed State investments in expanding and improving college and career pathways for young people through Career Connect Washington,⁶ the Golden State Pathways Program,⁷ and College Credit Plus,⁸ respectively.

Paragraph (b) of Absolute Priority 1, along with Program Requirements 2 and 3, challenges applicants to offer dual or concurrent enrollment courses not as one-off opportunities to explore postsecondary education, or what some have described as "random acts of dual enrollment," but as elements of a coherent program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program. Each academic or CTE course in the program of study should advance students toward their college and career goals by counting toward their intended postsecondary credential. Applicants are encouraged to

² We published a notice of proposed priorities, requirements, definitions, and selection criteria for this program in the *Federal Register* on May 16, 2023 (88 FR 31196). The notice contains background information on the evidence that supports the four keys to career-connected learning.

³ National Governors Association (2023), State Education Trends for 2023 (March 14, 2023). Retrieved from: https://www.nga.org/news/commentary/state-education-trends-for-2023/.

⁴ Jamieson, C., Perez, Jr., Z., "Governors' Top Education Priorities in 2023 State of the State Addresses." Education Commission of the States and the National Governor's Association. Retrieved from: https://www.ecs.org/wp-content/uploads/Governors-Top-Education-Priorities-in-2023-State-of-the-State-Addresses.pdf.

⁵ Montana Department of Commerce (2023), Governor Gianforte: "The American Dream is Alive and Well Here in Montana" (February 1, 2023). Retrieved from: https://commerce.mt.gov/News/news-articles/Governor-Gianforte-The-American-Dream-Is-Alive-and-Well-Here-in-Montana.

⁶ Career Connect Washington (2023), Career Connect Washington: Overview and Updates (April 2023). Retrieved from: https://careerconnectwa.org/plan/.

⁷ California Department of Education (2022), Golden State Pathways Program. Retrieved from: https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/hs/gspp.asp.

⁸ Poiner, J. (2022), Ohio is making strides in education-to-workforce pathways, Ohio Gadfly Daily (June 6, 2022), Thomas B. Fordham Institute. Retrieved from: https://fordhaminstitute.org/ohio/commentary/ohio-making-strides-education-workforce-pathways.

⁹ Fink, J., Fay, M., et al. (2022), From "Random Acts" and "Programs of Privilege" to Dual Enrollment Equity Pathways, The Mixed Methods Blog (April 4, 2022), Community College Research Center. Retrieved from: https://ccrc.tc.columbia.edu/easyblog/introducing-dual-enrollment-equity-pathways.html.

connect their design of these programs of study with the "guided pathway" reform effort among community colleges and other broad-access public institutions of higher education (IHEs) to reorganize course offerings into clearly defined course sequences within "meta-majors" that are mapped to in-demand careers. ¹⁰ Under the guided pathway model, students who are still considering their career and credential options select a meta-major like health sciences or science, technology, engineering, and mathematics, and begin taking introductory academic or CTE courses within the meta-major that count toward a number of different credentials. Dual or concurrent enrollment programs also may be organized in this way.

Statutory Application Requirement 4 requires a description of how the CTE programs or programs of study to be implemented with grant funds reflect the needs of local, regional, or State employers, as demonstrated by the comprehensive needs assessment that subrecipients of the Perkins V State formula grant program conduct every two years under section 134(c) of Perkins V. Applicants are encouraged to connect proposed project activities with efforts to strengthen and expand their local economies by attracting new industry and taking advantage of new good job opportunities like those created by the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (P.L. 117-58), CHIPS and Science Act (P.L. 117-167), and the Inflation Reduction Act (P.L. 117-169). The Invest.gov website has an interactive map that, for a given community, region, or State, illustrates the impact of this record-breaking level of Federal and private sector investment in critical sectors of our economy such as infrastructure, clean energy, semiconductors, and biotechnology. Additionally, applicants are encouraged to connect their proposed project activities with efforts to expand good jobs in foundational sectors that support healthy and productive local economies and workforces, such as health care and early education.

The Department is committed to advancing equity and examining and addressing the sources of inequities in educational opportunities. In this competition, Absolute Priority 2 is from the Secretary's Supplemental Priorities and Definitions for Discretionary Grants Programs, published in the *Federal Register* on December 10, 2021 (86 FR 70612) (Supplemental Priorities) and focuses on designing projects that provide opportunities and resources for underserved students (as defined in this notice). Perkins V emphasizes supports for students who

_

¹⁰Jenkins, D., Lahr, H., Fink, J., and Ganga, E. (2018), What We Are Learning About Guided Pathways: Part 1: A Reform Moves from Theory to Practice, Community College Research Center, Teachers College, Columbia University. Retrieved from: https://ccrc.tc.columbia.edu/media/k2/attachments/guided-pathways-part-1-theory-practice.pdf.

¹¹ Office of the President (Aug. 3, 2021), Fact Sheet: The Bipartisan Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act Creates Good-Paying Jobs and Supports Workers. Retrieved from: https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2021/08/03/fact-sheet-the-bipartisan-infrastructure-investment-and-jobs-act-creates-good-paying-jobs-and-supports-workers/.

¹² Office of the President (Aug. 9, 2022), Fact Sheet: CHIPS and Science Act Will Lower Costs, Create Jobs, Strengthen Supply Chains, and Counter China. Retrieved from: <a href="https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2022/08/09/fact-sheet-chips-and-science-act-will-lower-costs-create-jobs-strengthen-supply-chains-and-counter-china/. These include new jobs for early educators that may be created as a part of large employers' obligation to connect their employees to accessible, affordable, reliable, and high-quality child care.

 $[\]underline{https://www.nist.gov/system/files/documents/2023/03/30/CHIPS\%20Workforce\%20Development\%20Planning\%20Guide\%20\%281\%29.pdf.$

¹³ Office of the President (Aug. 19, 2022), Fact Sheet: The Inflation Reduction Act Supports Workers and Families. Retrieved from: https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2022/08/19/fact-sheet-the-inflation-reduction-act-supports-workers-and-families/.

¹⁴ The White House (2023), Investing in America. Retrieved from: https://www.whitehouse.gov/invest/.

are members of special populations (as defined in this notice). The groups of students in the Perkins V definition are aligned with the groups in the definition of underserved students drawn from the Supplemental Priorities.

All applicants are required to meet both Absolute Priorities 1 and 2 to be eligible for a grant award. Through Absolute Priority 2, we focus grantee efforts on expanding participation of underserved students in the four keys to career-connected learning described in Absolute Priority 1 because underserved students are typically less likely to access and engage in these opportunities than their peers. For example, while dual or concurrent enrollment programs are widespread and nationally—available, by one estimate, in 82 percent of public high schools ¹⁵—students from low-income families, English learners, students with disabilities, youth in foster care, and students experiencing homelessness are all less likely to participate in dual or concurrent enrollment programs or courses. ¹⁶ As a result, too many communities are not taking full advantage of the power of dual or concurrent enrollment to reduce equity gaps and promote greater college readiness and success among students who are underrepresented in postsecondary education. These and other equity gaps in career-connected learning activities are deep and persistent, but they can be closed with intentional policies and practices and by scaling up existing successful strategies. ¹⁷ Absolute Priority 2 focuses grantees on such efforts by deliberately designing their projects to close equity gaps. This priority is consistent with the focus on equity in Perkins V and with the statutory directive that the Department give priority to proposed PIM projects that will predominantly serve students from low-income families.

However, while Absolute Priority 2 requires a grantee to give particular attention to improving the participation of underserved students in systematic postsecondary counseling and career advising, dual or concurrent enrollment, work-based learning, and programs that offer opportunities to earn an industry-recognized credential, we encourage applicants to implement schoolwide-approaches that may be used to serve all students. Projects may be more cohesive and sustainable if the four keys are implemented schoolwide, with appropriate supports and equity guardrails to ensure that underserved students remain the focus of these strategies. Similarly, applicants who respond to Competitive Preference 2, which gives competitive preference to applicants who submit a plan to predominantly serve students from families with low incomes, are not required to exclusively serve students from families with low incomes to meet the priority. We encourage applicants responding to this priority to design schoolwide projects where possible.

¹⁵ Taie, S., & Lewis, L. (2020), Dual or concurrent enrollment in public schools in the United States (NCES 2020-125, Data Point). U.S. Department of Education, Institute of Education Sciences, National Center for Education Statistics. Retrieved from: https://nces.ed.gov/pubs2020/2020125.pdf.

¹⁶ Taylor, J. L., Allen, T. O., An, B. P., Denecker, C., Edmunds, J. A., Fink, J., Giani, M. S., Hodara, M., Hu, X., Tobolowsky, B. F., & Chen, W. (2022), Research priorities for advancing equitable dual enrollment policy and practice. Salt Lake City, UT: University of Utah. Retrieved from: https://cherp.utah.edu/ resources/documents/publications/research priorities for advancing equitable dual enrollment policy and practice.pdf.

¹⁷ Mehl, G., Wyner, J., Barnett, E. A., Fink, J., & Jenkins, D. (2020), The dual enrollment playbook: A guide to equitable acceleration for students. Aspen Institute and Community College Research Center.

Some students face barriers that can make accessing and succeeding in career-connected learning activities especially difficult. Comprehensive, wraparound supportive services can play a critical role in mitigating or removing these barriers. Supportive services could include, for example, and where appropriate, child and dependent care, tools, work clothing, application fees and other costs of apprenticeship or required preemployment training, transportation and travel to training and work sites, internet access, mental health counseling, legal assistance, financial counseling, drug treatment, reasonable accommodations, and services aimed at helping to retain underserved students like mentoring, support groups, and peer networking. 18 We note that Absolute Priority 1 uses the term "career guidance and academic counseling" from Perkins V, which includes informing all students about the availability of support services and directly providing support services to students who are members of special populations to enable them to persist in and complete programs of study. The definition of personalized postsecondary education and career plan also requires that the plan identify any comprehensive wraparound support services a student may need to participate in programs of study and workbased learning. Applicants are encouraged to address in their applications how they will use wraparound supportive services to increase student participation in the four keys to career-connected learning. This includes, where appropriate, child or dependent care, consistent with the President's Executive Order on Increasing Access to High-Quality Care and Supporting Caregivers. 19

One related program requirement addresses the implementation of the four keys described in Absolute Priority 1. It requires that each grantee's project plan include a timeline for implementation of all four keys to career-connected learning for students served by the project, by no later than the end of the fifth year of the project. Each grantee also must submit an annual report documenting progress on the implementation plan and the timeline. We recognize that grantees are likely to be in different stages of developing and implementing the four keys described in the priority at the onset of the grant period, and that some grantees will need more time to focus on one or more of the keys; however, we also emphasize that implementing a cohesive and integrated plan for transforming high schools that incorporates all four keys for all students served is more likely to be sustainable and effective in equitably preparing students for their futures. This requirement does not mandate that grantees achieve universal participation in the four keys to career-connected learning by the end of the grant period. It requires instead that a grantee achieve a measurable level of student participation in the four keys by the end of

_

¹⁸ Please note that any proposed use of funds for supportive services must be both an allowable activity under section 114(e)(7) of Perkins and a reasonable and necessary cost of the program under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards in 2 CFR part 200.

¹⁹ Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 14095 (April 18, 2023), Increasing Access to High-Quality Care and Supporting Caregivers, 88 FR 24669. Retrieved from: https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/04/21/2023-08659/increasing-access-to-high-quality-care-and-supporting-caregivers.

the grant period. Because several of the selection criteria assess the extent to which applicants will significantly expand participation in each of the keys, we expect applicants that seek to achieve a high level of participation in the four keys and present compelling plans for achieving it will be the most competitive.

Section 114(e)(5) of Perkins V directs the Department to award no less than 25 percent of PIM grant funds to projects proposing to fund CTE activities that serve students in rural communities. To confirm that a proposed project will serve students from rural communities, Absolute Priority 3 requires an applicant to identify, by name, National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) local educational agency (LEA), identification number, and NCES locale code, the rural LEA(s) that it proposes to serve in its grant application. Applicants from rural communities, including Tribal applicants, that wish to be considered for these focused funds, must meet Absolute Priorities 1, 2, and 3.

This competition also includes two competitive preference priorities. The first competitive preference priority has two parts. Competitive Preference Priority 1(a) seeks eligible applicants that apply as a partnership that includes an LEA, a community or technical college or another IHE, and, to ensure the project prepares students for in-demand careers, employers. Transforming high schools to equip students with the knowledge and skills they will need to succeed in college and in jobs is likely to be more cohesive if it is carried out through a partnership that includes, at a minimum, leadership and commitment from secondary education, postsecondary education, and business and industry. Other relevant community stakeholders, such as local workforce development boards (as defined in this notice), qualified intermediaries (as defined in this notice), labor-management partnerships, youth-serving organizations, local teachers' unions or school staff unions or other representatives of teachers and faculty, and nonprofit organizations, may also be engaged. Applicants are required to provide a preliminary memorandum of understanding (MOU) or partnership agreement among all the identified partner entities that describes the roles and responsibilities of each partner in carrying out the proposed project. Recognizing that some implementation decisions are likely to take more time or additional partners, the notice also requires PIM partnership grantees to submit a formal MOU that includes all members of the partnership 120 days after the grant is awarded.

Competitive Preference Priority 1(b) is from the Supplemental Priorities and establishes a competitive priority for applicants whose postsecondary partner is a Historically Black college or university, Tribal College or University, or a minority-serving institution (all respectively defined in this notice). Applicants that choose to address Competitive Preference Priority 1(a) may also address Competitive Preference Priority 1(b). To be considered for the maximum number of points for this competitive preference priority (7), an applicant must address both parts. An applicant may choose, however, to address only Competitive Preference 1(a) and receive 5 points.

Section 114(e)(4) of Perkins V instructs the Secretary to give priority to PIM grant projects that will predominantly serve students from low-income families. To encourage and support efforts to increase the number of innovative and high-quality programs available to students from families with low incomes, particularly in our Nation's high-poverty communities, Competitive Preference Priority 2 operationalizes this statutory priority by seeking applicants with a strong plan to serve students from families with low incomes and provide evidence that a specific minimum percentage of students from families with low incomes will be served by the project over the course of the grant project period.

<u>Priorities</u>: This notice contains three absolute priorities and two competitive preference priorities. Absolute Priorities 1 and 3 and Competitive Preference Priorities 1(a) and 2 are from the notice of final priorities, requirements, definitions, and selection criteria for the PIM grant program published in the *Federal Register* on August 14, 2023 (NFP). Absolute Priority 2 and Competitive Preference Priority 1(b) are from the Supplemental Priorities.

<u>Absolute Priorities</u>: For FY 2024 and any subsequent year in which we make awards from the list of unfunded applications from this competition, these priorities are absolute priorities. Under 34 CFR 75.105(c)(3) we consider only applications that meet Absolute Priority 1 and Absolute Priority 2; or Absolute Priority 1, Absolute Priority 2, and Absolute Priority 3.

Absolute Priority 3 constitutes its own funding category under Absolute Priorities 1 and 2. Under section 114(e)(5) of Perkins V, the Department must use at least 25 percent of PIM program grant funds per fiscal year to make awards to applicants serving rural communities, contingent on receipt of a sufficient number of applications of sufficient quality. For purposes of this competition, we will consider an applicant, including Tribal applicants, as rural if the applicant meets the qualifications for rural applicants established in section 114(e)(5)(A) of Perkins V, and the applicant addresses Absolute Priority 3. Consequently, there will be separate funding slates for each of the following categories of applications:

- Absolute Priorities 1 and 2;
- Absolute Priorities 1 and 2 and 3.

<u>Note</u>: As a result of the statutory requirement that the Department award no less than 25 percent of PIM grant funds to projects proposing to fund CTE activities that serve students in rural communities, the Department may fund applicants out of the overall rank order, provided applications of sufficient quality are submitted, but the Department is not bound to do so.

These priorities are:

Absolute Priority 1--Career-Connected High Schools.

To meet this priority, an applicant must submit a detailed 5-year implementation plan to increase the alignment and integration of high school and the first 2 years of postsecondary education in one or more high

schools that describes the extent to which the applicant is currently implementing career-connected learning, with supporting data if available; and describes how the applicant will substantially increase the proportion of students who graduate from high school with the following four keys for career connected learning:

- (a) Education and career goals documented in a personalized postsecondary education and career plan that was updated at least once in each year of high school through a system of career guidance and academic counseling (as defined by this notice) and postsecondary education navigation supports that offers college and career coaching from trained advisors that is culturally responsive and informed by accurate and current labor market information;
- (b) Postsecondary credits earned from dual or concurrent enrollment programs that are part of a program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program;
- (c) Work experience gained through participation in one or more work-based learning opportunities for which they received wages, academic credit, or both; and
 - (d) An in-demand and high-value industry-recognized credential.

Absolute Priority 2--Promoting Equity in Student Access to Educational Resources and Opportunities.

Under this priority, an applicant must demonstrate that the applicant proposes a project designed to promote educational equity and adequacy in resources and opportunity for underserved students in high school that examines the sources of inequity and inadequacy and implements responses, and that includes rigorous, engaging, and well-rounded (e.g., that includes music and the arts) approaches to learning that are inclusive with regard to race, ethnicity, culture, language, and disability status and prepare students for college, career, and civic life, including the following:

- (a) Advanced courses and programs, including dual enrollment and early college programs.
- (b) Project-based and experiential learning, including service and work-based learning.
- (c) High-quality CTE courses, pathways, and industry-recognized credentials that are integrated into the curriculum.

Absolute Priority 3--Rural Communities.

To meet this priority, an applicant must demonstrate that the proposed project will serve students residing in rural communities and identify by name, National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) LEA identification number, and NCES locale code, the rural LEA(s) that it proposes to serve in its grant application. Applicants may retrieve locale codes from the NCES School District search tool (nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/).

<u>Competitive Preference Priorities</u>: These priorities are competitive preference priorities. Under 34 CFR 75.105(c)(2)(i), we award an additional 5 points to an application that meets Competitive Preference Priority 1(a), and we award an additional 2 points to an application that meets Competitive Preference Priority 1(b), as

applicable. Only applicants that meet Competitive Preference Priority 1(a) are eligible for consideration under Competitive Preference Priority 1(b), and an applicant must address both parts of the priority to receive consideration for the full 7 points under Competitive Preference Priority 1. We award up to an additional 8 points to an application, depending on how well the application meets Competitive Preference Priority 2.

The total maximum points we may award an application that chooses to address all of the Competitive Preference Priorities is 115 for applicants applying under only Absolute Priorities 1 and 2. For applicants serving rural communities under Absolute Priority 3, who are eligible to receive up to an additional 10 points under the Selection Criteria, the total maximum points we may award an application that chooses to address all of the Competitive Preference Priorities is 125.

Competitive Preference Priority 1—Partnership Applications (up to 7 points total).

Competitive Preference Priority 1(a)—Partnership Requirements (5 points).

To meet this priority, an application—

- (1) Must be submitted by an applicant that includes one or more partners in each of the following categories:
- (A) A LEA (including a public charter school LEA), an area CTE school, an educational service agency serving secondary school students, an Indian Tribe, Tribal organization, or Tribal educational agency, eligible to receive assistance under section 131 of Perkins V;
- (B) A community or technical college or other IHE eligible to receive assistance under section 132 of Perkins V; and
- (C) Two or more business or industry representative partners, which may include representatives of local or regional businesses or industries;
- (2) May include any other relevant community stakeholders, such as local workforce development boards, labor-management partnerships, youth-serving organizations, nonprofit organizations, qualified intermediaries, local teachers unions or school staff unions or other representatives of teachers and faculty, and afterschool and summer learning programs; and
- (3) Must include a partnership agreement or proposed MOU among all members of the application, identified at the time of the application, that describes the role of each partner in carrying out the proposed project and the process for a formal MOU to be established.

<u>Competitive Preference Priority 1(b)--Promoting Equity in Student Access to Educational Resources and</u>
Opportunities (2 points).

Under this priority, an applicant must demonstrate that the project's partnership described in Competitive Preference Priority 1(a) will be implemented by or in partnership with one or more of the following entities:

(1) Historically Black colleges and universities.

- (2) Tribal Colleges and Universities.
- (3) Minority-serving institutions.

Competitive Preference Priority 2--Serving Students from Families with Low Incomes (up to 8 points).

To meet this priority, applicants must submit a plan to predominantly serve students from families with low incomes.

The plan must include--

- (a) The specific activities the applicant proposes to ensure that the project will predominantly serve students from low-income families, including how the project will recruit and retain students and the supports it will provide to students to promote retention and completion;
 - (b) The timeline for implementing the activities;
 - (c) The parties responsible for implementing the activities;
- (d) The key data sources and measures demonstrating that the project is designed to predominantly serve students from low-income families; and
- (e) Evidence that at least 51 percent of the students to be served by the project are from low-income families.
- (1) When demonstrating that the project is designed to predominantly serve secondary students from low-income families, the applicant must use one or more of the following data sources and measures:
- (A) Children aged 5 through 17 in poverty counted in the most recent census data approved by the Secretary; ²⁰
- (B) Students eligible for a free or reduced-price lunch under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act (42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.);
- (C) Students whose families receive assistance under the State program funded under part A of title IV of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 601 et seq.);
 - (D) Students who are eligible to receive medical assistance under the Medicaid program;
- (E) Residence in a Census tract, a set of contiguous Census tracts, an American Indian Reservation, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Area (as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau), Alaska Native Village Statistical Area or Alaska Native Regional Corporation Area, Native Hawaiian Homeland Area, or other Tribal land as defined by the Secretary of Labor in guidance, or a county, that has a poverty rate of at least 25 percent as set every 5 years using American Community Survey 5-year data; or
 - (F) A composite of such indicators.

²⁰ The U.S. Census Bureau LEA poverty estimates are available at: www.census.gov/data/datasets/2017/demo/saipe/2017-school-districts.html.

(2) When demonstrating that the project is designed to predominantly serve secondary students from low-income families, applicants may use data from elementary or middle schools that feed into a secondary school to establish that 51 percent of the students to be served by the project are students from low-income families.

Program Requirements:

The five program requirements for this program are from the NFP.

Program Requirement 1--Matching Contributions.

- (a) A grantee must provide from non-Federal sources (e.g., State, local, or private sources), an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of funds provided under the grant, which may be provided in cash or through inkind contributions, to carry out activities supported by the grant, except that the Secretary may waive the matching funds requirement, on a case-by-case basis, upon a showing of exceptional circumstances, such as (but not limited to)—
 - (1) The difficulty of raising matching funds for a program to serve a rural area.
 - (2) The difficulty of raising matching funds on Tribal land.
- (3) The difficulty of raising matching funds in areas with a concentration of local educational agencies or schools with a high percentage of students aged 5 through 17--
 - (A) who are living in poverty, as counted in the most recent census data approved by the Secretary;
- (B) who are eligible for a free or reduced-price lunch under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act (42 U.S.C. 1751 et seq.);
- (C) whose families receive assistance under the State program funded under part A of title IV of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 601 et seq.); or
 - (D) who are eligible to receive medical assistance under the Medicaid program.
- (4) The difficulty of raising matching funds by an IHE that, during the current or preceding year, has been granted a waiver by the Department of certain non-Federal cost-sharing requirements under the Federal Work Study program, the Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants program, or the TRIO Student Support Services program because it has low education and general expenditures and serves a large proportion of students receiving need-based assistance under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (HEA).
- (b) Non-Federal funds used by a grantee to support activities allowable under this program prior to its receipt of the grant may be used to meet the matching requirements of this program. The prohibition against supplanting non-Federal funds in section 211(a) of Perkins V applies to grant funds provided under this program but does not apply to the matching requirement.

(c) Matching funds provided by a grantee may be met over the full duration of the grant award period, rather than per year, except that the grantee must make progress toward meeting the matching requirement in each year of the grant award period.

Program Requirement 2--Programs of Study.

By no later than the end of the first year of the project, courses in programs of study offered by grantees to students for completion during high school must be designed to meet the entrance requirements and expectations for placement in credit-bearing coursework at public, in-state IHEs. Dual enrollment courses confer postsecondary credit. The programs of study offered to students by grantees may include opportunities to attain an industry-recognized credential or a postsecondary certificate that participating students may earn during high school, but must culminate with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program upon completion of additional postsecondary education after high school graduation.

<u>Program Requirement 3--Independent Evaluation.</u>

- (a) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must, in accordance with instructions and definitions provided by the Secretary, report annually the number and percentage of students who graduated from high schools served by the proposed project who, prior to or upon graduation--
- (1) Earned, through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or CTE subject areas--
 - (i) any postsecondary credits; and, separately,
- (ii) 12 or more postsecondary credits that are part of a program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program.
- (2) Completed 40 or more hours of work-based learning for which they received wages or academic credit, or both.
- (3) Attained an industry-recognized credential that is in-demand in the local, regional, or State labor market and associated with one or more jobs with median earnings that exceed the median earnings of a high school graduate.
- (4) Met, in each year of high school, with a school counselor, college adviser, career coach, or other appropriately trained adult for education and career counseling during which they reviewed and updated a personalized postsecondary educational and career plan.
 - (b) The outcomes described in paragraph (a) must be disaggregated by--
- (1) Subgroups of students, described in section 1111(c)(2)(B) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA);
 - (2) Special populations;
 - (3) Sex; and

- (4) Each CTE program and program of study.
- (c) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must report annually on the extent to which CTE participants and CTE concentrators in each CTE program or program of study reflect the demographics of the school, including sex, major racial and ethnic groups, and special populations status.
- (d) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must also report annually on the average number of postsecondary credits earned by students through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or career and technical education subject areas and any project-specific indicators identified by the grantee.

Program Requirement 4--Final MOU.

Within 120 days of receipt of its grant award, each grantee that submitted a partnership application must submit a final MOU among all partner entities that describes the roles and responsibilities of the partners in carrying out the project and its activities.

Program Requirement 5--Project Implementation Plan and Timeline.

Each grantee must have a project plan that includes an implementation timeline with benchmarks to implement the four keys to career-connected learning for students served by the project, as described in Absolute Priority 1, by no later than the end of the fifth year of the project. Each grantee will submit a report documenting progress on the implementation plan and the timeline on an annual basis.

Application Requirements:

All applicants must meet the application requirements to be considered for funding. Application requirement (a) is from section 114(e)(3) of Perkins V. Application requirements (b) through (f) are from the NFP.

- (a) Statutory Application Requirements. Each applicant must:
- (1) Identify and designate the agency, institution, or school responsible for the administration and supervision of the proposed project;
- (2) Describe the budget for the project, including the source and amount of the required matching funds and how the applicant will continue the project after the grant period ends, if applicable;
- (3) Describe how the applicant will use the grant funds, including how such grant funds will directly benefit students, including special populations, served by the applicant;
- (4) Describe how the program assisted under this subsection will be coordinated with the activities carried out under section 124 or 135 of Perkins V;

<u>Note</u>: In addressing this application requirement, applicants need only describe this coordination to the extent the applicant is aware of State leadership activities or local uses of funds under section 124 or 135 of Perkins V.

- (5) Describe how the CTE programs and/or programs of study to be implemented with grant funds reflect the needs of regional, State, or local employers, as demonstrated by the comprehensive needs assessment under section 134(c) of Perkins V;
- (6) Describe how the proposed program will be evaluated and how that evaluation may inform the report described in section 114(d)(2)(C) of Perkins V.; and
 - (7) Provide an assurance that the applicant will—
- (A) Provide information to the Secretary, as requested, for evaluations that the Secretary may carry out; and
- (B) Make data available to third parties for validation, in accordance with applicable data privacy laws, including section 444 of the General Education Provisions Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g, commonly known as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974).
 - (b) <u>Demonstration of Matching Funds</u>.
- (1) Each applicant must provide from non-Federal sources (e.g., State, local, or private sources) an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of funds provided under the grant, which may be provided in cash or through in-kind contributions, to carry out activities supported by the grant unless it receives a waiver due to exceptional circumstances. The applicant must include in its grant application a budget detailing the source of the matching funds or a request to waive the entirety or a portion of the matching requirement due to exceptional circumstances.
- (2) An applicant that is unable to meet the matching requirement must include in its application a request to the Secretary to reduce the matching requirement, including the amount of the requested reduction, the total remaining match contribution, an explanation and evidence of the exceptional circumstances that make it difficult for the applicant to provide matching funds, and an indication as to whether it can carry out its proposed project if the matching requirement is not waived.

(c) <u>Programs of Study</u>.

Each applicant must identify and describe in its application the course sequences in the programs of study that will be offered by high schools in the proposed project, including the associate, bachelor's, advanced degree, or certificate of completion of a Registered Apprenticeship that students may earn by completing each program of study, and how students served by the proposed project will have equitable access to such programs of study.

(d) Secondary and Postsecondary Alignment and Integration.

Each applicant must describe how it has aligned and integrated or will align and integrate the secondary coursework offered to students in funded projects to meet the entrance requirements and expectations for placement in credit-bearing coursework at public, in-state IHEs. If the alignment has not been achieved at the time of application, this description must include a timeline for completion of this work by the end of the first

year of the project, as well as information on the persons who will be responsible for these activities and their roles and qualifications.

(e) Articulation and Credit Transfer Agreements.

Each applicant must include in its application an assurance that by no later than the end of the first year of the project, LEAs, and IHEs participating in the project will execute articulation or credit transfer agreements that ensure that postsecondary credits earned by students in dual or concurrent enrollment programs supported by the project will be accepted for transfer at each participating IHE, and other IHEs, if applicable, and count toward the requirements for earning culminating postsecondary credentials for programs of study offered to students through the project.

(f) Dual or Concurrent Enrollment Goals.

Each applicant must include in its application a description of how it will substantially increase the proportion of students who graduate from high school with postsecondary credits earned through participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs and how, over the 60-month project period, it also will seek to increase the average number of postsecondary credits earned by students to 12 or more credits.

Definitions:

The definitions of area CTE school, articulation agreement, career guidance and academic counseling, career and technical education, CTE concentrator, CTE participant, credit transfer agreement, eligible entity, eligible institution, eligible recipient, English learner, individual with a disability, non-traditional fields, out-ofworkforce individual, postsecondary educational institution, program of study, qualified intermediary, special populations, and work-based learning are from section 3 of Perkins V. The definitions of dual or concurrent enrollment program, early college high school, and evidence-Based are from section 8101 of the ESEA (20 U.S.C. 7801 et seq.) because Perkins V adopted the ESEA definitions of these terms (see subsections (15), (16), (23), and (47) of section 3 of Perkins V, respectively). The definition of institution of higher education is from section 101 of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (HEA) (20 U.S.C. 1001 et seq.), because Perkins V adopted the HEA definition of that term (see section 3(30) of Perkins V). The definitions of baseline, performance Measure, performance target, project component, and relevant outcome are from 34 CFR 77.1. The definitions of local workforce development board and recognized postsecondary credential are from section 3 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) (29 U.S.C. 3102), because Perkins V adopted the WIOA definitions of those terms (see sections 3(32) and (43) of Perkins V, respectively). The definitions of Historically Black colleges and universities, minority-serving institution, Tribal College or University, and underserved student are from the Supplemental Priorities. The definitions of independent evaluation, industry-recognized credential, personalized postsecondary educational and career plan and rural community are from the NFP.

Area CTE school means--

- (A) a specialized public secondary school used exclusively or principally for the provision of CTE to individuals who are available for study in preparation for entering the labor market;
- (B) the department of a public secondary school exclusively or principally used for providing CTE in not fewer than 3 different fields that are available to all students, especially in high-skill, high-wage, or in-demand industry sectors or occupations, that are available to all students;
- (C) a public or nonprofit technical institution or CTE school used exclusively or principally for the provision of CTE to individuals who have completed or left secondary school and who are available for study in preparation for entering the labor market, if the institution or school admits, as regular students, individuals who have completed secondary school and individuals who have left secondary school; or
- (D) the department or division of an IHE, that operates under the policies of the eligible agency and that provides CTE in not fewer than 3 different occupational fields leading to immediate employment but not necessarily leading to a baccalaureate degree, if the department or division admits, as regular students, both individuals who have completed secondary school and individuals who have left secondary school.

Articulation agreement means a written commitment--

- (a) That is agreed upon at the State level or approved annually by the lead administrators of--
- (1) A secondary institution and a postsecondary educational institution; or
- (2) A subbaccalaureate degree granting postsecondary educational institution and a baccalaureate degree granting postsecondary educational institution; and
 - (b) To a program that is--
- (1) Designed to provide students with a nonduplicative sequence of progressive achievement leading to technical skill proficiency, a credential, a certificate, or a degree; and
- (2) Linked through credit transfer agreements between the 2 institutions described in clause (1) or (2) of subparagraph (a) (as the case may be).

<u>Baseline</u> means the starting point from which performance is measured and targets are set.

Career guidance and academic counseling means guidance and counseling that—

- (a) Provides access for students (and parents, as appropriate) to information regarding career awareness and planning with respect to an individual's occupational and academic future; and
- (b) Provides information with respect to career options, financial aid, and postsecondary options, including baccalaureate degree programs. Provides access for students (and, as appropriate, parents and out-of-school youth) to information regarding career awareness exploration opportunities and planning with respect to an individual's occupational and academic future; and
- (c) May provide assistance for special populations with respect to direct support services that enable students to persist in and complete career and technical education, programs of study, or career pathways.

Career and technical education means organized educational activities that-

- (a) Offer a sequence of courses that--
- (1) Provides individuals with rigorous academic content and relevant technical knowledge and skills needed to prepare for further education and careers in current or emerging professions, which may include high-skill, high-wage, or in-demand industry sectors or occupations, which shall be, at the secondary level, aligned with the challenging State academic standards adopted by a State under section 1111(b)(1) of the ESEA;
- (2) Provides technical skill proficiency or a recognized postsecondary credential which may include an industry-recognized credential, a certificate, or an associate degree; and
- (3) May include prerequisite courses (other than a remedial course) that meet the requirements of this subparagraph;
- (b) Include competency-based, work-based, or other applied learning that supports the development of academic knowledge, higher-order reasoning and problem-solving skills, work attitudes, employability skills, technical skills, and occupation-specific skills, and knowledge of all aspects of an industry, including entrepreneurship, of an individual;
- (c) To the extent practicable, coordinate between secondary and postsecondary education programs through programs of study, which may include coordination through articulation agreements, early college high school programs, dual or concurrent enrollment program opportunities, or other credit transfer agreements that provide postsecondary credit or advanced standing; and
- (d) May include career exploration at the high school level or as early as the middle grades (as such term is defined in section 8101 of the ESEA).

Career guidance and academic counseling means guidance and counseling that—

- (a) Provides access for students (and parents, as appropriate) to information regarding career awareness and planning with respect to an individual's occupational and academic future; and
- (b) Provides information with respect to career options, financial aid, and postsecondary options, including baccalaureate degree programs. Provides access for students (and, as appropriate, parents and out-of-school youth) to information regarding career awareness exploration opportunities and planning with respect to an individual's occupational and academic future; and
- (c) May provide assistance for special populations with respect to direct support services that enable students to persist in and complete career and technical education, programs of study, or career pathways.

<u>Credit transfer agreement</u> means a formal agreement, such as an articulation agreement, among and between secondary and postsecondary education institutions or systems that grant students transcripted postsecondary credit, which may include credit granted to students in dual or concurrent enrollment programs,

early college high school, dual credit, articulated credit, and credit granted on the basis of performance on technical or academic assessments.

CTE concentrator means—

- (a) At the secondary school level, a student served by an eligible recipient who has completed at least two courses in a single CTE program or program of study; and
 - (b) At the postsecondary level, a student enrolled in an eligible recipient who has—
 - (1) Earned at least 12 credits within a CTE program or program of study; or
- (2) Completed such a program if the program encompasses fewer than 12 credits or the equivalent in total.

<u>CTE participant</u> means an individual who completes not less than one course in a CTE program or program of study of an eligible recipient.

<u>Dual or concurrent enrollment program</u> means a program offered by a partnership between at least one IHE and at least one LEA through which a secondary school student who has not graduated from high school with a regular high school diploma is able to enroll in one or more postsecondary courses and earn postsecondary credit that—

- (a) Is transferable to the IHEs in the partnership; and
- (b) Applies toward completion of a degree or recognized educational credential as described in the HEA (20 U.S.C. 1001 et seq.).

<u>Early college high school</u> means a partnership between at least one LEA and at least one IHE that allows participants to simultaneously complete requirements toward earning a regular high school diploma and earn not less than 12 credits that are transferable to the IHEs in the partnership as part of an organized course of study toward a postsecondary degree or credential at no cost to the participant or participant's family.

Eligible entity means a consortium that includes the following:

- (a) Representatives of not less than 2 of the following categories of entities, 1 of which shall serve as the fiscal agent for the consortium:
 - (1) An LEA or a consortium of such agencies.
 - (2) An educational service agency serving secondary school students.
 - (3) An area CTE school or a consortium of such schools.
 - (4) An Indian Tribe, Tribal organization, or Tribal educational agency.
- (5) An IHE whose most common degree awarded is an associate degree, or a consortium of such institutions.
- (6) An IHE whose most common degree awarded is a bachelor's or higher degree, or a consortium of such institutions.

- (7) An SEA.
- (b) One or more business or industry representative partners, which may include representatives of local or regional businesses or industries, including industry or sector partnerships in the local area, local workforce development boards, or labor organizations.
 - (c) One or more stakeholders, which may include—
 - (1) Parents and students;
- (2) Representatives of local agencies serving out-of-school youth, homeless children and youth, and atrisk youth (as defined in section 1432 of the ESEA (20 U.S.C. 6472));
 - (3) Representatives of Indian Tribes and Tribal organizations, where applicable;
- (4) Representatives of minority-serving institutions (as described in paragraphs (1) through (7) of section 371(a) of the HEA (20 U.S.C. 1067q (a)), where applicable;
 - (5) Representatives of special populations;
 - (6) Representatives of adult CTE providers; or
 - (7) Other relevant community stakeholders.

Eligible institution means—

- (a) A consortium of 2 or more of the entities described in subparagraphs (b) through (f);
- (b) A public or nonprofit private IHE that offers and will use funds provided under this title in support of CTE courses that lead to technical skill proficiency or a recognized postsecondary credential, including an industry-recognized credential, a certificate, or an associate degree;
 - (c) An LEA providing education at the postsecondary level;
 - (d) An area CTE school providing education at the postsecondary level;
- (e) An Indian Tribe, Tribal organization, or Tribal education agency that operates a school or may be present in the State;
- (f) A postsecondary educational institution controlled by the Bureau of Indian Education or operated by or on behalf of any Indian Tribe that is eligible to contract with the Secretary of the Interior for the administration of programs under the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5301 et seq.) or the Act of April 16, 1934 (25 U.S.C. 5342 et seq.);
 - (g) A tribally controlled college or university; or
 - (h) An educational service agency.

Eligible recipient means—

(a) An LEA (including a public charter school that operates as an LEA), an area CTE school, an educational service agency, an Indian Tribe, Tribal organization, or Tribal educational agency or a consortium, eligible to receive assistance under section 131 of Perkins V; or

(b) An eligible institution or consortium of eligible institutions eligible to receive assistance under section 132 of Perkins V.

English learner means—

- (a) A secondary school student who is an English learner, as defined in section 8101 of the ESEA; or
- (b) An adult or an out-of-school youth who has limited ability in speaking, reading, writing, or understanding the English language and—
 - (i) whose native language is a language other than English; or
- (ii) who lives in a family environment or community in which a language other than English is the dominant language.

<u>Evidence-based</u>, when used with respect to State, LEA, or school activity, means an activity, strategy, or intervention that-

- (a) Demonstrates a statistically significant effect on improving student outcomes or other relevant outcomes based on—
 - (1) Strong evidence from at least 1 well-designed and well-implemented experimental study;
 - (2) Moderate evidence from at least 1 well-designed and well-implemented quasi-experimental study; or
- (3) Promising evidence from at least 1 well-designed and well-implemented correlational study with statistical controls for selection bias; or
- (b)(1) Demonstrates a rationale based on high-quality research findings or positive evaluation that such activity, strategy, or intervention is likely to improve student outcomes or other Relevant Outcomes; and
- (2) Includes ongoing efforts to examine the effects of such activity, strategy, or intervention.

 Note: This definition of evidence-based from section 3(23) of Perkins V and section 8101(21)(A) of the ESEA also applies to an eligible entity, an eligible institution, and an eligible recipient.

<u>Historically Black colleges and universities</u> means colleges and universities that meet the criteria set out in 34 CFR 608.2.

<u>Independent evaluation</u> means an evaluation that is designed and carried out independent of and external to the grantee but in coordination with any employees of the grantee who developed a project component that is currently being implemented as part of the grant activities.

Individual with a disability means—

- (a) An individual with any disability (as defined in section 3 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12102)).
 - (b) Individuals with disabilities means more than 1 individual with a disability. Industry-recognized credential means a credential that is--

- (a) Developed and offered by, or endorsed by, a nationally recognized industry association or organization representing a sizable portion of the industry sector, or a product vendor;
- (b) Awarded in recognition of an individual's attainment of measurable technical or occupational skills; and
- (c) Sought or accepted by multiple employers within an industry or sector as a recognized, preferred, or required credential for recruitment, hiring, retention, or advancement.

<u>Institution of higher education</u> (IHE) means—

- (a) An educational institution in any State that—
- (1) Admits as regular students only persons having a certificate of graduation from a school providing secondary education, or the recognized equivalent of such a certificate, or persons who meet the requirements of section 484(d)(3) of the HEA;
- (2) Is legally authorized within such State to provide a program of education beyond secondary education:
- (3) Provides an educational program for which the institution awards a bachelor's degree or provides not less than a 2-year program that is acceptable for full credit toward such a degree, or awards a degree that is acceptable for admission to a graduate or professional degree program, subject to review and approval by the Secretary;
 - (4) Is a public or other nonprofit institution; and
- (5) Is accredited by a nationally recognized accrediting agency or association or, if not so accredited, is an institution that has been granted pre-accreditation status by such an agency or association that has been recognized by the Secretary for the granting of pre-accreditation status, and the Secretary has determined that there is satisfactory assurance that the institution will meet the accreditation standards of such an agency or association within a reasonable time.
 - (b) The term also includes:
- (1) Any school that provides not less than a 1-year program of training to prepare students for gainful employment in a recognized occupation and that meets the provisions of paragraphs (1), (2), (4), and (5) of subsection (a) of this definition; and
- (2) A public or nonprofit private educational institution in any State that, in lieu of the requirement in subsection (a)(1) of this definition, admits as regular students' individuals—
- (A) Who are beyond the age of compulsory school attendance in the State in which the institution is located; or
 - (B) Who will be dually or concurrently enrolled in the institution and a secondary school.

<u>Local workforce development board</u> means a local workforce development board established under section 107 of the WIOA (29 U.S.C. 3122).

<u>Minority-serving institution</u> means an institution that is eligible to receive assistance under sections 316 through 320 of part A of title III, under part B of title III, or under title V of the HEA.

<u>Non-traditional fields</u> means occupations or fields of work, such as careers in computer science, technology, and other current and emerging high skill occupations, for which individuals from one gender comprise less than 25 percent of the individuals employed in each such occupation or field of work.

Out-of-workforce individual means—

- (a) An individual who is a displaced homemaker, as defined in section 3 of the WIOA (29 U.S.C. 3102); or
 - (b) An individual who—
- (1)(i) Has worked primarily without remuneration to care for a home and family, and for that reason has diminished marketable skills; or
- (ii) Is a parent whose youngest dependent child will become ineligible to receive assistance under part A of title IV of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 601 et seq.) not later than 2 years after the date on which the parent applies for assistance under such title; and
- (2) Is unemployed or underemployed and is experiencing difficulty in obtaining or upgrading employment.

<u>Performance measure</u> means any quantitative indicator, statistic, or metric used to gauge program or project performance.

<u>Performance target</u> means a level of performance that an applicant would seek to meet during the course of a project or as a result of a project.

Personalized postsecondary educational and career plan means a plan, developed by the student and, to the greatest extent practicable, the student's family or guardian, in collaboration with a school counselor or other individual trained to provide career guidance and academic counseling that is used to help establish personalized academic and career goals, explore postsecondary and career opportunities, identify programs of study and work-based learning that advance the student's personalized postsecondary education and career goals, including any comprehensive wraparound support services the student may need to participate in programs of study and work-based learning, and establish appropriate milestones and timelines for tasks important to preparing for success after high school, including applying for postsecondary education and student financial aid, preparing a resume, and completing applications for employment.

Postsecondary educational institution means-

- (a) An IHE that provides not less than a 2-year program of instruction that is acceptable for credit toward a bachelor's degree;
 - (b) A tribally controlled college or university; or
- (c) A nonprofit educational institution offering certificate or other skilled training programs at the postsecondary level.

<u>Program of study</u> means a coordinated, nonduplicative sequence of academic and technical content at the secondary and postsecondary level that—

- (a) Incorporates challenging State academic standards, including those adopted by a State under section 1111(b)(1) of the ESEA;
 - (b) Addresses both academic and technical knowledge and skills, including employability skills;
- (c) Is aligned with the needs of industries in the economy of the State, region, Tribal community, or local area:
- (d) Progresses in specificity (beginning with all aspects of an industry or career cluster and leading to more occupation-specific instruction);
 - (e) Has multiple entry and exit points that incorporate credentialing; and
 - (f) Culminates in the attainment of a recognized postsecondary credential.

<u>Project Component</u> means an activity, strategy, intervention, process, product, practice, or policy included in a project. Evidence may pertain to an individual project component or to a combination of project components (e.g., training teachers on instructional practices for English learners and follow-on coaching for these teachers).

Qualified intermediary means a nonprofit entity, which may be part of an industry or sector partnership, that demonstrates expertise in building, connecting, sustaining, and measuring partnerships with entities such as employers, schools, community-based organizations, postsecondary institutions, social service organizations, economic development organizations, Indian Tribes or Tribal organizations, and workforce systems to broker services, resources, and supports to youth and the organizations and systems that are designed to serve youth, including—

- (a) Connecting employers to classrooms;
- (b) Assisting in the design and implementation of CTE programs and programs of study;
- (c) Delivering professional development;
- (d) Connecting students to internships and other Work-Based Learning opportunities; and
- (e) Developing personalized student supports.

Rural community means an area served by an LEA with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary and defined by the National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) Locale framework.

<u>Recognized postsecondary credential</u> means a credential consisting of an industry-recognized certificate or certification, a certificate of completion of an apprenticeship, a license recognized by the State involved or Federal Government, or an associate or baccalaureate degree.

Relevant outcome means the student outcome(s) or other outcome(s) the key project component is designed to improve, consistent with the specific goals of the program.

Special populations means—

- (a) Individuals with disabilities;
- (b) Individuals from economically disadvantaged families, including low-income youth and adults;
- (c) Individuals preparing for non-traditional fields;
- (d) Single parents, including single pregnant women;
- (e) Out-of-workforce individuals;
- (f) English learners;
- (g) Homeless individuals described in section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a);
 - (h) Youth who are in, or have aged out of, the foster care system; and
 - (i) Youth with a parent who—
- (1) Is a member of the armed forces (as such term is defined in section 101(a)(4) of title 10, United States Code); and
 - (2) Is on active duty (as such term is defined in section 101(d)(1) of such title).

Tribal College or University has the meaning ascribed it in section 316(b)(3) of the HEA.

<u>Underserved student</u> means a student (which may include children in early learning environments, students in K-12 programs, students in postsecondary education or CTE, and adult learners, as appropriate) in one or more of the following subgroups:

- (a) A student who is living in poverty or is served by schools with high concentrations of students living in poverty.
 - (b) A student of color.
 - (c) A student who is a member of a federally recognized Indian Tribe.
 - (d) An English learner.
 - (e) A child or student with a disability.
 - (f) A student experiencing homelessness or housing insecurity.
 - (g) A student who is in foster care.
 - (h) A military- or veteran- connected student.
 - (i) A pregnant, parenting, or caregiving student.

Work-based learning means sustained interactions with industry or community professionals in real workplace settings, to the extent practicable, or simulated environments at an educational institution that foster indepth, firsthand engagement with the tasks required of a given career field, that are aligned to curriculum and instruction.

<u>Program Authority</u>: Section 114(e) of the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, as amended by the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Perkins V) (20 U.S.C. 2324).

<u>Note</u>: Projects will be awarded and must be operated in a manner consistent with the nondiscrimination requirements contained in Federal civil rights laws.

Applicable Regulations: (a) The Education Department General Administrative Regulations in 34 CFR parts 75, 77, 79, 81, 82, 84, 86, 97, 98, and 99. (b) The Office of Management and Budget Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement) in 2 CFR part 180, as adopted and amended as regulations of the Department in 2 CFR part 3485. (c) The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards in 2 CFR part 200, as adopted and amended as regulations of the Department in 2 CFR part 3474. (d) the Supplemental Priorities. (e) The NFP.

Note: The regulations in 34 CFR part 86 apply to IHEs only.

II. Award Information

Type of Award: Discretionary grants.

Estimated Available Funds: \$24,250,000.

Contingent upon the availability of funds and the quality of applications, we may make additional awards in subsequent years from the list of unfunded applications from this competition.

Estimated Range of Awards: \$1,100,000 - \$1,475,000 for each 12-month project period (i.e., a total of approximately \$3,425,000 - \$4,425,000 over the full potential 36-month project period).

Estimated Average Size of Awards: \$1,300,000 for each 12-month project period.

Estimated Number of Awards: 10-20.

Note: The Department is not bound by any estimates and does not set a maximum award in this notice.

Project Period: Up to 36 months, with potential for renewal of up to an additional 24 months.

Note: Under section 114(e)(5) of Perkins V, the Department must use at least 25 percent of PIM program grant funds per fiscal year to make awards to applicants serving rural areas, contingent on receipt of a sufficient number of applications of sufficient quality. For purposes of this competition, we will consider an applicant as rural if the applicant meets the qualifications for rural applicants established in section 114(e)(5)(A) of Perkins V, and the applicant meets Absolute Priority 3. In implementing this statutory provision and Absolute Priority 3, the

Department may fund high-quality applications from rural applicants out of overall rank order, though the Department is not bound to do so.

- III. Eligibility Information
 - 1. Eligible Applicants: The following entities are eligible to apply under this competition:
 - (a) An eligible entity.
 - (b) An eligible institution.
 - (c) An eligible recipient.

<u>Note</u>: An eligible entity must comply with the regulations in 34 CFR 75.127 through 75.129, which address group applications.

2. <u>Rural Applicants</u>: To qualify as a rural applicant under section 114(e)(5)(A) of Perkins V, an applicant must meet Absolute Priority 3.

<u>Note</u>: For the purposes of meeting the statutory rural set-aside, an applicant must meet the requirements as listed above and provide the necessary locale codes in its grant application. Applicants are encouraged to retrieve locale codes from the NCES School District search tool (https://nces.ed.gov/ccd/districtsearch/), where districts can be looked up individually to retrieve locale codes.

- 3. a. Cost Sharing or Matching: Under section 114(e)(2) of Perkins V, each grant recipient must provide, from non-Federal sources (e.g., State, local, or private sources), an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of funds provided under the grant, which may be provided in cash or through in-kind contributions, to carry out activities supported by the grant. Perkins V authorizes the Secretary to waive the matching requirement on a case-by-case basis upon demonstration of exceptional circumstances. Program Requirement 1--Matching Contributions and Application Requirement (b)--Demonstration of Matching Funds provide guidance on the matching requirement. Consistent with 2 CFR 200.306(b), any matching funds must be an allowable use of funds consistent with the cost principles detailed in Subpart E of the Uniform Guidance, and not included as a contribution for any other Federal award.
- b. <u>Supplement-not-Supplant</u>: This program is subject to supplement-not-supplant funding requirements. In accordance with section 211(a) of Perkins V, funds under this program may not be used to supplant non-Federal funds used to carry out CTE activities. Further, the prohibition against supplanting also means that grantees will be required to use their negotiated restricted indirect cost rates under this program. (34 CFR 75.563)
- c. <u>Indirect Cost Rate Information</u>: This program uses a restricted indirect cost rate. For more information regarding indirect costs, or to obtain a negotiated indirect cost rate, please see https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocfo/intro.html.

- d. <u>Administrative Cost Limitation</u>: This program does not include any program-specific limitation on administrative expenses. All administrative expenses must be reasonable and necessary and conform to Cost Principles described in 2 CFR part 200 subpart E of the Uniform Guidance.
- 4. <u>Subgrantees</u>: Under 34 CFR 75.708(b) and (c), a grantee under this competition may award subgrants to directly carry out project activities described in its application to the following types of entities: IHEs, LEAs, non-profit organizations, qualified intermediaries, or SEAs. The grantee may only award subgrants to entities it has identified in an approved application.
- 5. Extensions: Under section 114(e)(6)(b) of Perkins V, the Secretary may extend a grant awarded under this section for up to 2 additional years if the grantee demonstrates to the Secretary that the project is achieving the grantee's program objectives and has improved education outcomes for CTE students, including special populations.

<u>Note</u>: Applicants must submit annual budgets for a 60-month project period. During the third year of the project period for grants awarded under this competition, if the Department exercises the option to offer an opportunity for extensions, the Department will provide grantees with information on the extension process. In making decisions on whether to award a 2-year extension award, we intend to review performance data submitted in regularly required reporting, as well as potentially request other information about the grantee's progress in implementing its project.

IV. Application and Submission Information

- 1. <u>Application Submission Instructions</u>: Applicants are required to follow the Common Instructions for Applicants to Department of Education Discretionary Grant Programs, published in the *Federal Register* on December 7, 2022 (84 FR 3768), and available at https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/07/2022-26554/common-instructions-for-applicants-to-department-of-education-discretionary-grant-programs, which contain requirements and information on how to submit an application. Please note that these Common Instructions supersede the version published on December 27, 2021.
- 2. <u>Submission of Proprietary Information</u>: Given the types of projects that may be proposed in applications for the PIM competition, your application may include business information that you consider proprietary. In 34 CFR 5.11 we define "business information" and describe the process we use in determining whether any of that information is proprietary and, thus, protected from disclosure under Exemption 4 of the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552, as amended). Because we may make successful applications available to the public, you may wish to request confidentiality of business information. Consistent with Executive Order 12600 (Predisclosure Notification Procedures for Confidential Commercial Information), please designate in your application any information that you believe is exempt from disclosure under Exemption 4. In the appropriate Appendix section of your application, under "Other Attachments Form," please list the page

number or numbers on which we can find this information. For additional information please see 34 CFR 5.11(c).

- 3. <u>Intergovernmental Review</u>: This competition is subject to Executive Order 12372 and the regulations in 34 CFR part 79. Information about Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs under Executive Order 12372 is in the application package for this program.
- 4. <u>Funding Restrictions</u>: We specify unallowable costs in 2 CFR 200, subpart E. We reference regulations outlining funding restrictions in the Applicable Regulations section of this notice.
- 5. <u>Recommended Page Limit</u>: The application narrative is where you, the applicant, address the selection criteria that reviewers use to evaluate your application. We recommend that you (1) limit the application narrative to no more than 35 pages and (2) use the following standards:
 - A "page" is 8.5" x 11", on one side only, with 1" margins at the top, bottom, and both sides.
- Double-space (no more than three lines per vertical inch) all text in the application narrative, including titles, headings, footnotes, quotations, references, and captions, as well as all text in charts, tables, figures, and graphs.
 - Use a font that is either 12 point or larger or no smaller than 10 pitch (characters per inch).
 - Use one of the following fonts: Times New Roman, Courier, or Arial.

The recommended page limit does not apply to the cover sheet; the budget section, including the narrative budget justification; the assurances and certifications; or the one-page abstract, the resumes, the bibliography, the letters of support, or any request for a waiver of the matching requirement. However, the recommended page limit does apply to all of the application narrative.

6. Notice of Intent to Apply: The Department will be able to review grant applications more efficiently if we know the approximate number of applicants that intend to apply. Therefore, we strongly encourage each potential applicant to notify us of their intent to submit an application. To do so, please email the program contact person listed under FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT with the subject line "Intent to Apply," and include the applicant's name and a contact person's name and email address. Applicants that do not submit a notice of intent to apply may still apply for funding; applicants that do submit a notice of intent to apply are not bound to apply or bound by the information provided.

V. Application Review Information

1. <u>Selection Criteria</u>: The selection criteria for this program are from the NFP and 34 CFR 75.210. The maximum score for selection criteria (a) through (e) is 100 points. The maximum score for each criterion is indicated in parentheses. In addressing the criteria, applicants are encouraged to make explicit connections to the priorities and requirements listed elsewhere in this notice. Only applicants that meet Absolute Priority 3 will

receive scores for selection criterion (f) (up to 10 additional points). Points awarded under these selection criteria are in addition to any points an applicant earned under the competitive preference priorities in this notice.

The selection criteria for this competition are as follows:

(a) Significance (up to 6 points).

In determining the significance of the proposed project, the Department considers the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the proposed project addresses a regional or local labor market need identified through a comprehensive local needs assessment carried out under section 134(c) of Perkins V or labor market information produced by the State or other entity that demonstrates the proposed project will address State, regional, or local labor market needs (up to 3 points).
- (2) The extent to which the proposed project addresses significant barriers to enrollment and completion in dual or concurrent enrollment programs and will expand access to these programs for students served by the project (up to 3 points).
 - (b) Quality of the Project Design (up to 44 points).

In determining the quality of the project design, the Department considers the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the proposed project is likely to be effective in increasing the attainment of postsecondary credits earned through participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs by students who are not currently participating in such programs, and the likely magnitude of the increase (up to 8 points).
- (2) The extent to which the proposed project will increase the successful participation in work-based learning opportunities for which they received wages or academic credit, or both, prior to graduation by students who are not currently participating in such opportunities, and the likely magnitude of the increase (up to 8 points).
- (3) The extent to which the proposed project is likely to be effective in increasing successful participation in opportunities to attain an in-demand and high-value industry-recognized credential that is sought or accepted by multiple employers within an industry or sector as a recognized, preferred, or required credential for recruitment, hiring, retention, or advancement by students who are not currently participating in such opportunities, and the likely magnitude of the increase (up to 8 points).
- (4) The extent to which the proposed project will implement strategies that are likely to be effective in eliminating or mitigating barriers to the successful participation by all students in dual or concurrent programs, work-based learning opportunities, and opportunities to attain in-demand and high-value industry-recognized credentials, including such barriers as the out-of-pocket costs of tuition, books, and examination fees; transportation; and eligibility requirements that do not include multiple measures of assessing academic readiness (up to 8 points).
- (5) The extent to which the proposed project will provide all students effective and ongoing career guidance and academic counseling in each year of high school that--

- (A) Will likely result, by no later than the end of the second year of the project, in a personalized postsecondary education and career plan for each student that is updated at least once annually with the assistance of a school counselor, career coach, mentor, or other adult trained to provide career guidance and counseling to high school students (up to 6 points); and
- (B) Includes the provision of current labor market information about careers in high-demand fields that pay living wages; advice and assistance in identifying, preparing for, and applying for postsecondary educational opportunities; information on Federal student financial aid programs; and assistance in applying for Federal student financial aid (up to 2 points).
- (6) The extent to which the proposed project is likely to prepare all students served by the project to enroll in postsecondary education following high school without need for remediation (up to 4 points).
 - (c) Quality of Project Services (up to 8 points).
- (1) In determining the quality of the services to be provided by the proposed project, the Department considers the quality and sufficiency of strategies for ensuring equal access and treatment for eligible project participants who are members of groups that have traditionally been underrepresented based on race, color, national origin, gender, age, or disability.
- (2) In addition, the Department considers the extent to which the services to be provided by the proposed project are focused on those with greatest needs.
 - (d) Quality of the Management Plan (up to 32 points).

In determining the quality of the management plan, the Department considers the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the project goals are clear, complete, and coherent, and the extent to which the project activities constitute a complete plan aligned to those goals, including the identification of potential risks to project success and strategies to mitigate those risks (up to 7 points);
- (2) The extent to which the management plan articulates key responsibilities for each party involved in the project and also articulates well-defined objectives, including the timelines and milestones for completion of major project activities, the metrics that will be used to assess progress on an ongoing basis, and annual performance targets the applicant will use to monitor whether the project is achieving its goals (up to 7 points);
 - (3) The adequacy of the project's staffing plan, particularly for the first year of the project, including:
- (A) The identification of the project director and, in the case of projects with unfilled key personnel positions at the beginning of the project, a description of how critical work will proceed (up to 3 points); and
- (B) The extent to which the project director has experience managing projects similar in scope to that of the proposed project (up to 3 points).

- (4) The extent of the demonstrated commitment of any partners whose participation is critical to the project's long-term success, including the extent of any evidence of support or specific resources from employers and other stakeholders (up to 6 points).
- (5) The extent to which employers in the labor market served by the proposed project will be involved in making decisions with respect to the project's implementation and in carrying out its activities (up to 6 points).
 - (e) Quality of the Project Evaluation (up to 10 points).

In determining the quality of the evaluation, the Secretary considers the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the methods of evaluation will provide valid and reliable performance data on relevant outcomes (up to 5 points); and
- (2) The extent to which the methods of evaluation will provide performance feedback and permit periodic assessment of progress toward achieving intended outcomes (up to 5 points).

<u>Note</u>: Applicants may wish to review the following technical assistance resources on evaluation: (1) The What Works Clearinghouse (WWC) Procedures and Standards Handbooks: https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/wwc/Handbooks; (2) "Technical Assistance Materials for Conducting Rigorous Impact Evaluations":

http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/projects/evaluationTA.asp; and (3) IES/NCEE Technical Methods papers: http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/tech_methods/.

In addition, applicants may view a webinar recording that was hosted by the Institute of Education Sciences, focused on more rigorous evaluation designs, discussing strategies for designing and executing experimental studies that meet WWC evidence standards without reservations. This webinar is available at: http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/wwc/Multimedia.aspx?sid=18.

(f) Support for Rural Communities (up to 10 points).

In determining the extent of the project's support for rural communities, the Department considers the following factors:

- (1) The extent to which the applicant presents a clear, well-documented plan for primarily serving students from rural communities (up to 3 points); and
- (2) The extent to which the applicant proposes a project that will improve the education and employment outcomes of students in rural communities (up to 7 points).
- 2. Review and Selection Process: We remind potential applicants that in reviewing applications in any discretionary grant competition, the Secretary may consider, under 34 CFR 75.217(d)(3), the past performance of the applicant in carrying out a previous award, such as the applicant's use of funds, achievement of project objectives, and compliance with grant conditions. The Secretary may also consider whether the applicant failed to submit a timely performance report or submitted a report of unacceptable quality.

In addition, in making a competitive grant award, the Secretary requires various assurances including those applicable to Federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance from the Department of Education (34 CFR 100.4, 104.5, 106.4, 108.8, and 110.23).

Before making awards, we will screen applications submitted in accordance with the requirements in this notice to determine whether applications have met eligibility and other requirements. This screening process may occur at various stages of the process; applicants that are determined to be ineligible will not receive a grant, regardless of peer reviewer scores or comments. Peer reviewers will read, prepare a written evaluation of, and score the assigned applications, using the selection criteria provided in this notice.

Additional factors we consider in selecting an application for an award are as follows:

- (a) As required under section 114(e)(5) of Perkins V, the Secretary will award no less than 25 percent of the total available funds for any fiscal year to eligible entities, eligible institutions, or eligible recipients proposing to fund CTE activities that serve—
- (1) An LEA with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary;
 - (2) An IHE primarily serving one or more areas served by such an LEA;
 - (3) A consortium of such LEAs or such IHEs;
 - (4) A partnership between—
 - (A) An educational service agency or a nonprofit organization; and
 - (B) Such an LEA or such an IHE; or
 - (5) A partnership between—
 - (A) A grant recipient described in clause (1) or (2); and
 - (B) An SEA.
- (b) The Secretary will reduce the amount of funds made available under such clause if the Secretary does not receive a sufficient number of applications of sufficient quality.
- 3. <u>Risk Assessment and Specific Conditions</u>: Consistent with 2 CFR 200.206, before awarding grants under this program the Department conducts a review of the risks posed by applicants. Under 2 CFR 200.208, the Secretary may impose specific conditions and, under 2 CFR 3474.10, in appropriate circumstances, high-risk conditions on a grant if the applicant or grantee is not financially stable; has a history of unsatisfactory performance; has a financial or other management system that does not meet the standards in 2 CFR part 200, subpart D; has not fulfilled the conditions of a prior grant; or is otherwise not responsible.
- 4. <u>Integrity and Performance System</u>: If you are selected under this competition to receive an award that over the course of the project period may exceed the simplified acquisition threshold (currently \$250,000), under 2 CFR 200.206(a)(2), we must make a judgment about your integrity, business ethics, and record of performance

under Federal awards--that is, the risk posed by you as an applicant--before we make an award. In doing so, we must consider any information about you that is in the integrity and performance system (currently referred to as the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)), accessible through the System for Award Management. You may review and comment on any information about yourself that a Federal agency previously entered and that is currently in FAPIIS.

Please note that, if the total value of your currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement contracts from the Federal Government exceeds \$10,000,000, the reporting requirements in 2 CFR part 200, Appendix XII, require you to report certain integrity information to FAPIIS semiannually. Please review the requirements in 2 CFR part 200, Appendix XII, if this grant plus all the other Federal funds you receive exceed \$10,000,000.

5. <u>In General</u>:

In accordance with OMB's guidance located at 2 CFR part 200, all applicable Federal laws, and relevant Executive guidance, the Department will review and consider applications for funding pursuant to this notice inviting applications in accordance with—

- (a) Selecting recipients most likely to be successful in delivering results based on the program objectives through an objective process of evaluating Federal award applications (2 CFR 200.205);
- (b) Prohibiting the purchase of certain telecommunication and video surveillance services or equipment in alignment with section 889 of the National Defense Authorization Act of 2019 (Pub. L. 115–232) (2 CFR 200.216);
- (c) Providing a preference, to the extent permitted by law, to maximize use of goods, products, and materials produced in the United States (2 CFR 200.322); and
- (d) Terminating agreements in whole or in part to the greatest extent authorized by law if an award no longer effectuates the program goals or agency priorities (2 CFR 200.340).

VI. Award Administration Information

1. <u>Award Notices</u>: If your application is successful, we notify your U.S. Representative and U.S. Senators and send you a Grant Award Notification (GAN); or we may send you an email containing a link to access an electronic version of your GAN. We also may notify you informally.

If your application is not evaluated or not selected for funding, we notify you.

2. <u>Administrative and National Policy Requirements</u>: We identify administrative and national policy requirements in the application package and reference these and other requirements in the <u>Applicable Regulations</u> section of this notice.

We reference the regulations outlining the terms and conditions of an award in the <u>Applicable</u>

<u>Regulations</u> section of this notice and include these and other specific conditions in the GAN. The GAN also incorporates your approved application as part of your binding commitments under the grant.

- 3. Open Licensing Requirements: Unless an exception applies, if you are awarded a grant under this competition, you will be required to openly license to the public grant deliverables created in whole, or in part, with Department grant funds. When the deliverable consists of modifications to pre-existing works, the license extends only to those modifications that can be separately identified and only to the extent that open licensing is permitted under the terms of any licenses or other legal restrictions on the use of pre-existing works.

 Additionally, a grantee or subgrantee that is awarded competitive grant funds must have a plan to disseminate these public grant deliverables. This dissemination plan can be developed and submitted after your application has been reviewed and selected for funding. For additional information on the open licensing requirements please refer to 2 CFR 3474.20.
- 4. <u>Reporting</u>: (a) If you apply for a grant under this competition, you must ensure that you have in place the necessary processes and systems to comply with the reporting requirements in 2 CFR part 170 should you receive funding under the competition. This does not apply if you have an exception under 2 CFR 170.110(b).
- (b) At the end of your project period, you must submit a final performance report, including financial information, as directed by the Secretary. If you receive a multiyear award, you must submit an annual performance report that provides the most current performance and financial expenditure information as directed by the Secretary under 34 CFR 75.118. The Secretary may also require more frequent performance reports under 34 CFR 75.720(c). For specific requirements on reporting, please go to www.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/appforms/appforms.html.
- (c) Under 34 CFR 75.250(b), the Secretary may provide a grantee with additional funding for data collection analysis and reporting. In this case, the Secretary establishes a data collection period.
- 5. <u>Performance Measures</u>: For purposes of Department reporting under 34 CFR 75.110, the Department has developed the following performance measures for this program.

Each grantee will be required to conduct an independent evaluation (and submit an annual report) that includes a description of how PIM grant funds were used; student outcomes, as applicable, using the Perkins V section 113 core indicators of performance; and a quantitative analysis of the effectiveness of the PIM grant project.

Additionally, under Program Requirement 3, all grantees will be required to propose performance targets consistent with the objectives of the proposed project and report annually the number and percentage of students who graduated from high schools served by the proposed project who, prior to or upon graduation--

- (1) Earned, through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or CTE subject areas --
 - (i) any postsecondary credits; and, separately,
- (ii) 12 or more postsecondary credits that are part of a program of study that culminates with an associate, bachelor's, or advanced degree, or completion of a Registered Apprenticeship Program.
- (2) Completed 40 or more hours of work-based learning for which they received wages or academic credit, or both.
- (3) Attained an industry-recognized credential that is in-demand in the local, regional, or State labor market and associated with one or more jobs with median earnings that exceed the median earnings of a high school graduate.
- (4) Met, in each year of high school, with a school counselor, college adviser, career coach, or other appropriately trained adult for education and career counseling during which they reviewed and updated a personalized postsecondary educational and career plan (as defined in this notice).
 - (b) The outcomes described in paragraph (a) must be disaggregated by--
 - (1) Subgroups of students described in section 1111(c)(2)(B) of the ESEA; and
 - (2) Special populations;
 - (3) Sex; and
 - (4) Each CTE program and program of study.
- (c) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must report annually on the extent to which CTE participants and CTE concentrators in each CTE program or program of study reflect the demographics of the school, including sex, major racial and ethnic groups, and special populations status.
- (d) The independent evaluation supported by a grantee must also report annually on the average number of postsecondary credits earned by students through their successful participation in dual or concurrent enrollment programs in academic or career and technical education subject areas and any project-specific indicators identified by the grantee.

Project-Specific Performance Measures:

Applicants must propose project-specific performance measures and performance targets consistent with the objectives of the proposed project.

Applications must provide the following information as directed under 34 CFR 75.110(b) and (c):

- (a) Performance Measures. How each proposed performance measure would accurately measure the performance of the project and how the proposed performance measures would be consistent with the performance measures established for the program funding the competition.
 - (b) Baseline Data.

- (i) Why each proposed baseline is valid; or
- (ii) If the applicant has determined that there are no established baseline data for a particular performance measure, an explanation of why there is no established baseline and of how and when, during the project period, the applicant would establish a valid baseline for the performance measure.
- (c) Performance Targets. Why each proposed performance target is ambitious yet achievable compared to the baseline for the performance measure and when, during the project period, the applicant would meet the performance target(s).
 - (d) Data Collection and Reporting.
- (i) The data collection and reporting methods the applicant would use and why those methods are likely to yield reliable, valid, and meaningful performance data; and
- (ii) The applicant's capacity to collect and report reliable, valid, and meaningful performance data, as evidenced by high-quality data collection, analysis, and reporting in other projects or research.
- 6. <u>Continuation Awards</u>: In making a continuation award under 34 CFR 75.253, the Secretary considers, among other things: whether a grantee has made substantial progress in achieving the goals and objectives of the project; whether the grantee has expended funds in a manner that is consistent with its approved application and budget; and, if the Secretary has established performance measurement requirements, whether the grantee has made substantial progress in achieving the performance targets in the grantee's approved application.

In making a continuation award, the Secretary also considers whether the grantee is operating in compliance with the assurances in its approved application, including those applicable to Federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance from the Department (34 CFR 100.4, 104.5, 106.4, 108.8, and 110.23).

VII. Other Information

Accessible Format: On request to the program contact person listed under FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT, individuals with disabilities can obtain this document and a copy of the application package in an accessible format. The Department will provide the requestor with an accessible format that may include Rich Text Format (RTF) or text format (txt), a thumb drive, an MP3 file, braille, large print, audiotape, or compact disc, or other accessible format.

Electronic Access to This Document: The official version of this document is the document published in the Federal Register. You may access the official edition of the Federal Register and the Code of Federal Regulations at www.govinfo.gov. At this site you can view this document, as well as all other documents of this Department published in the Federal Register, in text or Portable Document Format (PDF). To use PDF, you must have Adobe Acrobat Reader, which is available free at the site.

You may also access documents of the Department published in the *Federal Register* by using the article search feature at www.federalregister.gov. Specifically, through the advanced search feature at this site, you can limit your search to documents published by the Department.

T 1 D1:

Luke Rhine,

Deputy Assistant Secretary, Delegated the Duties of the Assistant Secretary

for Career, Technical, and Adult Education.

X. AUTHORIZING LEGISLATION

Perkins Innovation and Modernization Grant Program is authorized under Section 114(e) of the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, as amended by Perkins V.

Section 114 (e) INNOVATION AND MODERNIZATION. —

(1) GRANT PROGRAM.--To identify, support, and rigorously evaluate evidence-based and innovative strategies and activities to improve and modernize career and technical education and align workforce skills with labor market needs as part of the State plan under section 122 and local application under section 134 and the requirements of this subsection, the Secretary may use not more than 20 percent of the amounts appropriated under subsection (f) to award grants to eligible entities, eligible institutions, or eligible recipients to carry out the activities described in paragraph (7).

(2) NON-FEDERAL MATCH. —

- (A) MATCHING FUNDS REQUIRED. --Except as provided under subparagraph (B), to receive a grant under this subsection, an eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient shall, through cash or in-kind contributions, provide matching funds from non-Federal sources in an amount equal to not less than 50 percent of the funds provided under such grant.
- (B) EXCEPTION. -- The Secretary may waive the matching fund requirement under subparagraph (A) if the eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient demonstrates exceptional circumstances.
- (3) APPLICATION. -- To receive a grant under this subsection, an eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient shall submit an application to the Secretary at such time, in such manner, and containing such information as the Secretary may require, including, at a minimum—
- (A) an identification and designation of the agency, institution, or school responsible for the administration and supervision of the program assisted under this paragraph;
- (B) a description of the budget for the project, the source and amount of the matching funds required under paragraph (2)(A), and how the applicant will continue the project after the grant period ends, if applicable;
- (C) a description of how the applicant will use the grant funds, including how such funds will directly benefit students, including special populations, served by the applicant;
- (D) a description of how the program assisted under this subsection will be coordinated with the activities carried out under section 124 or 135;
- (E) a description of how the career and technical education programs or programs of study to be implemented with grant funds reflect the needs of regional, State, or local employers, as demonstrated by the comprehensive needs assessment under section 134(c);
- (F) a description of how the program assisted under this subsection will be evaluated and how that evaluation may inform the report described in subsection (d)(2)(C); and
- (G) an assurance that the applicant will—
- (i) provide information to the Secretary, as requested, for evaluations that the Secretary may carry out; and
- (ii) make data available to third parties for validation, in accordance with applicable data privacy laws, including section 444 of the General Education Provisions Act (20 U.S.C. 1232g, commonly known as the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974).

(4) PRIORITY. —In awarding grants under this subsection, the Secretary shall give priority to applications from eligible entities, eligible institutions, or eligible recipients that will predominantly serve students from low-income families.

(5) GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSITY. —

- (A) In general. --In awarding grants under this subsection, the Secretary shall award no less than 25 percent of the total available funds for any fiscal year to eligible entities, eligible institutions, or eligible recipients proposing to fund career and technical education activities that serve—
- (i) a local educational agency with an urban-centric district locale code of 32, 33, 41, 42, or 43, as determined by the Secretary;
- (ii) an institution of higher education primarily serving the one or more areas served by such a local educational agency;
- (iii) a consortium of such local educational agencies or such institutions of higher education;
- (iv) a partnership between—
- (I) an educational service agency or a nonprofit organization; and
- (II) such a local educational agency or such an institution of higher education; or
- (v) a partnership between—
- (I) a grant recipient described in clause (i) or (ii); and
- (II) a State educational agency.
- (B) EXCEPTION. —Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), the Secretary shall reduce the amount of funds made available under such clause if the Secretary does not receive a sufficient number of applications of sufficient quality.

(6) Duration. —

IN GENERAL. --Grants awarded under this subsection shall be for a period of not more than 3 years.

EXTENSION. --The Secretary may extend such grants for not more than 1 additional 2-year period if the grantee demonstrates to the Secretary that the grantee is achieving the grantee's program objectives and, as applicable, has improved education outcomes for career and technical education students, including special populations.

- (7) USES OF FUNDS.—An eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient that is awarded a grant under this subsection shall use the grant funds to create, develop, implement, replicate, or take to scale evidence-based, field-initiated innovations to modernize and improve effectiveness and alignment of career and technical education and to improve student outcomes in career and technical education, and rigorously evaluate such innovations, through one or more of the following activities:
- (A) Designing and implementing courses or programs of study aligned to labor market needs in new or emerging fields and working with industry to upgrade equipment, technology, and related curriculum used in career and technical education programs, which is needed for the development, expansion, and implementation of State-approved career and technical education programs of study, including—
- (i) the development or acquisition of instructional materials associated with the equipment and technology purchased by an eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient through the grant; or
- (ii) efforts to expand, develop, or implement programs designed to increase opportunities for students to take rigorous courses in coding or computer science subject areas, and support for statewide efforts to increase access

and implementation of coding or computer science courses in order to meet local labor market needs in occupations that require skills in those subject areas.

- (B) Improving career and technical education outcomes of students served by eligible entities, eligible institutions, or eligible recipients through activities such as—
- (i) supporting the development and enhancement of innovative delivery models for career and technical education related work-based learning, including school-based simulated work sites, mentoring, work site visits, job shadowing, project-based learning, and skills-based and paid internships;
- (ii) increasing the effective use of technology within career and technical education programs and programs of study;
- (iii) supporting new models for integrating academic content at the secondary and postsecondary level in career and technical education; or
- (iv) integrating science, technology, engineering, and mathematics fields, including computer science education, with career and technical education.
- (C) Improving the transition of students—
- (i) from secondary education to postsecondary education or employment through programs, activities, or services that may include the creation, development, or expansion of dual or concurrent enrollment programs, articulation agreements, credit transfer agreements, and competency-based education; or
- (ii) from the completion of one postsecondary program to another postsecondary program that awards a recognized postsecondary credential
- (D) Supporting the development and enhancement of innovative delivery models for career and technical education.
- (E) Working with industry to design and implement courses or programs of study aligned to labor market needs in new or emerging fields.
- (F) Supporting innovative approaches to career and technical education by redesigning the high school experience for students, which may include evidence-based transitional support strategies for students who have not met postsecondary education eligibility requirements.
- (G) Creating or expanding recruitment, retention, or professional development activities for career and technical education teachers, faculty, school leaders, administrators, specialized instructional support personnel, career guidance and academic counselors, and paraprofessionals, which may include—
- (i) providing resources and training to improve instruction for, and provide appropriate accommodations to, special populations;
- (ii) externships or site visits with business and industry;
- (iii) the integration of coherent and rigorous academic content standards and career and technical education curricula, including through opportunities for appropriate academic and career and technical education teachers to jointly develop and implement curricula and pedagogical strategies;
- (iv) mentoring by experienced teachers;
- (v) providing resources or assistance with meeting State teacher licensure and credential requirements; or
- (vi) training for career guidance and academic counselors at the secondary level to improve awareness of postsecondary education and postsecondary career options, and improve the ability of such counselors to communicate to students the career opportunities and employment trends.
- (H) Improving CTE concentrator employment outcomes in non-traditional fields.

- (I) Supporting the use of career and technical education programs and programs of study in a coordinated strategy to address identified employer needs and workforce shortages, such as shortages in the early childhood, elementary school, and secondary school education workforce.
- (J) Providing integrated student support that addresses the comprehensive needs of students, such as incorporating accelerated and differentiated learning opportunities supported by evidence-based strategies for special populations.
- (K) Establishing an online portal for career and technical education students, including special populations, preparing for postsecondary career and technical education, which may include opportunities for mentoring, gaining financial literacy skills, and identifying career opportunities and interests, and a platform to establish online savings accounts to be used exclusively for postsecondary career and technical education programs and programs of study.
- (L) Developing and implementing a pay for success initiative.
- (8) Evaluation.--Each eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient receiving a grant under this subsection shall provide for an independent evaluation of the activities carried out using such grant and submit to the Secretary an annual report that includes—
- (A) a description of how funds received under this paragraph were used;
- (B) the performance of the eligible entity, eligible institution, or eligible recipient with respect to, at a minimum, the performance indicators described under section 113, as applicable, and disaggregated by—
- (i) subgroups of students described in section 1111(c)(2)(B) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965;
- (ii) special populations; and
- (iii) as appropriate, each career and technical education program and program of study; and
- (C) a quantitative analysis of the effectiveness of the project carried out under this paragraph.